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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DiyJSION FOR BEHA VJORAL HEALTH

Lort A Weaver '^9 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
interim Commissioner 603-271-9544 1-800-852-3345 Ext 9544

Fax: 603-271-4332 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 wvm.<ihbs.nh.gov
Katja S. Fox
Director

May 25, 2023

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
on behalf of the Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Other Drugs, to enter into a Sole Source
amendment to an existing contract with Foundation for Healthy Communities (VC#154533-8001),
Concord, NH for the continued ability of hospital systems to address substance use disorders
across a!) levels of care for New Hampshire residents experiencing addiction, by increasing the
price limitation by $454,107 from $5,949,000 to $6,403,107 and by extending the completion date
from June 30,2023 to June 30.2024, effective July 1,2023 upon Governor and Council approval.
11% Federal Funds and 89% Other Funds (Governor's Commission).

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on July 13, 2016, item #6B.
It was subsequently amended on March 7,2018, item #16, amended on May 15, 2019, item #17,
amended on June 24,2020 (Item #26), amended on June 30.2021 (Item #17). and most recently
amended on January ,12, 2022, item #16.

Funds are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2024, upon the avaitabllity and
continued appropriation of funds In the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget
line Items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the
Budget Office, if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because MOP 150 requires all amendments to agreements
previously approved as sole source to be identified as sole source, and the Department is seeking
to extend the contract beyond the available renewal options, as directed by the Governor's
Commission on Alcohol and Other Drugs. The Contractor is uniquely qualified to continue
providing services to subcontracted hospitals due to Its established professional relationships with
all hospitals in New Hampshire, and its proven ability to work effectively with New Hampshire
hospitals and physician practices to implement new programs. The hospitals that are currently
participating In this program are Alice Peck Day Memorial Hospital, Androscoggin Valley Hospital,
Catholic Medical Center, Concord Hospital, Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center, Elliot Hospital,
Exeter Hospital, Huggins Hospital, St. Joseph's Hospital of Nashua NH, Upper Connecticut Valley
Hospital and Valley Regional Hospital.

The purpose of this request is to continue services that address substance use disorders
in hospitals and hospitals' physician practices through provision of screening, assessment and
treatment Including Medication Assisted Treatment in emergency departments, acute care and
outpatient services due to ongoing increased demand. Providing support and technical
assistance to medical professionals to recognize and address substance use disorders (SUD)
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across the spectrum of hospital services increases opportunities for Individuals experiencing SUD
issues to not only initiate and maintain their recovery, but also allow for their continuity of
treatment.

Approximately 225 individuals will be served during State Fiscal Year 2024.
The Contractor will continue to recruit, engage and provide training and other technical

support to develop these services within subcontracted hospitals participating in the program.
The Contractor will also support the subcontracted hospitals to design and Implement two (2) or
more process Improvement projects focused on improving care for persons with SUD.

The Department will monitor services by reviewing the quarterly, ad hoc data, and annual
reports provided by the Contractor.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, the availability of these vital
services will be limited, and residents in some areas of the State may not receive appropriate
treatment for their substance use disorders, resulting in heightened risk from overdose, financial
and emotional strains on families, and related economic and resource challenges in communities
as affected individuals continue to struggle with their addictions.

Area served: Statewide —

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #93.959, FAIN TI085821

In the event that the Federal or Other Funds become no longer available, General Funds
will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Weaver

Interim Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join comniunities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



05-95^9-491510-29900000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, DEPT
OF. HHS: DIV FOR BEHAVORIAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SVCS, CLINICAL
SERVICES (80% FEDERAL FUNDS 20% GENERAL FUNDS)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number
Current Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised

Budget

2017
102-

500734

Contract for Social

Svc
49158501 $1,500,000 $0 $1,500,000

2018
102-

500734

Contract for Social

Svc
4918501 $300,000 $0. $300,000

Subtotal $1,800,000 $0 $1,800,000

05-95-920510-33840000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, DEPT OF,
HHS: DIV FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SVCS, CLINICAL
SERVICES (MIXED FUNDING)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number
Current Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised

Budget

2018
102-

500734

Contracts for

Social Svc
92057501 $500,000 $0 $500,000

2023
074-

500589

Community

Grants
92056506 $50,000 $0 $50,000

2024
074-

500589

Community

Grants
92056506 $0 $50,000 $50,000

■ Subtotal $550,000 $50,000 $600,000 •

05-95-92-920510-33820000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, DEPT
OF. HHS: DIV FOR BEHAVORIAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SVCS, GOVERNOR
COMMISSION FUNDS (100% OTHER FUNDS)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number
Current Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised

Budget

2019
102-

500734

Contracts for

Social Svc
92058501 $556,000 ■ $0 $556,000

2020
102-

500734

Contracts for

Social Svc
92058501 $556,000 $0 $556,000

2021
102-

500731

Contracts for

Proqram Svc
92058501 $1,056,000 .  $0 $1,056,000

2022
074-

500585

Community

Grants
92058501 $651,893 $0 $651,893

2023
074-

500585

Community
Grants

92058501 $404,107 $0 $404,107

2024
074-

500589
Welfare Programs 92058501 $0 $404,107 $404,107

Subtotal $3,224,000 $404,107 $3,628,707



05-95-92-920510-70400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, DEPT
OF.HHS: DIV FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SVCS, STATE OPIOID
RESPONSE GRANT (100% FEDERAL FUNDS)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number
Current Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2022
074-

500585

Community

Grants
92057048 $25,000 $0 $25,000

Subtotal $25,000 $0 $25,000

05-95-92-

OF, HHS:

ADDITIOr

920510-19810000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, DEPT
DIV FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SVCS, SABG
JAL (100% FEDERAL FUNDS)

2023
074-

500585

Community

Grants
92055501 $350,000 $0 $350,000

Subtotal $350,000 $0 $350,000

TOTAL $5,949,000 $454,107 $6,403,107
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #6

This Amendment to- the Medication Assisted Services contract is by and between the State of New
Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and Foundation for
Healthy Communities ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on July 13. 2016 (Item #6B), as amended on March 7. 2018 (Item #16), as amended on May 15. 2019.
(Item #17). as amended on June 24, 2020 (Item #26). as amended on June 30, 2021 (Item #17), and as
amended on January 12, 2022 (Item #16) the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon
the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums
specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, and
modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30. 2024

2. Form P-37. General Provisions, Block 1.8. Price Limitation, to read:

$6,403,107

3. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.9. Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Robert W. Moore. Director.

4. Modify Exhibit A, Amendment #4. Scope of Services by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit A
Amendment #6, Scope of Services, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

5. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #2, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, by replacing in
its entirety with Exhibit B, Amendment #6, Payment Terms, which is attached hereto and
incorporated by reference herein.

6. Add Exhibit B-8, Amendment #6 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

DS

Foundation for Healthy Communities A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials

SS-2017-BDAS-02-MATSE-01-A06 Page 1 of 3 Date
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective July 1, 2023 upon Governor and Council
approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Departrnent of Health and Human Services

S/31/2023

Date

-OocuSisncd by:

IK S.
^ ■■ coioeswcwmt.—-—
Name: S. Fox

Title: Director

5/31/2023

Date

ioByfor Healthy Communities

Title: Executive Di rector

Foundation for Healthy Communities

SS-2017-BDAS-02-MATSE-01-A06

A-S-1.2

Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

OocuSIb"*<> by:uocudignto oy:

5/31/2023
'M8Ta4fljUMia8e....

1  <3.
* ■ruiTanflHuwiaoe.
N amfi- RObynDate Name: Rooyn Guanno
Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date ■ Name;
Title:

Foundation for Healthy Communities A-S-1.2
SS-2017-BDAS-02-MATSE-01-A06 Page 3 of 3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Medication Assisted Services

Exhibit A, Amendment #6

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance
services they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the
contract effective date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders.may have an impact
on the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify
Service priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to
achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. For the purposes of this Agreement, the Department has identified the
, Contractor as a Subrecipient, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.0. et seq.

2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall recruit and subcontract with a minimum of six (6) hospitals
to improve the care of persons with Substance Use Disorders (SUDs) who are
patients in their hospitals and/or hospital systems, inclusive of Emergency
Departments, acute care units and networked outpatient medical practices.

2.2. The Contractor shall ensure the subcontracted hospitals (hospitals) design and
implement two (2) or more process improvement projects focused on screening,
brief interventions, peer recovery support, provision of naloxone, harm reduction
education, advanced training for medical providers, connection to community
recovery support programs, or incorporation of patient perspectives in patient
care services in order to improve care for patients with SUD. The Contractor
must ensure hospitals;

2.2.1. Engage in process improvement projects to provide, at a minimum:

2.2.1.1. Universal screening of patierits in inpatient, emergency
department, and networked primary care practices using
validated SUD screening tools, preferably integrated with
existing electronic health records; and

2.2.1.2. Brief interventions conducted by providers with patients who
screen positive for SUD.

2.2.2. May engage in one (1) or more additional process improvement
projects including, but not limited to:

2.2.2.1. Peer recovery support services where appropriate and in
consideration of patient choice.

DS

7A
Foundation for Healthy Communities Exhibit A - Amendment #6 Contractor Initials
SS-2017-BD AS-02-M ATSE-01 - A06 5/31/2023

Page 1 of 4 Date

Rev.09/06/18
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Medication Assisted Services

Exhibit A, Amendment #6

2.2.2.2. Dispensing naloxone at discharge for all patients who may be
at risk for opioid use.

2.2.2.3. Education on harm reduction principles and practices for
patients.

2.2.2.4. A specified training series for staff with modules that may
address, but are not limited to:

2.2.2.4.1. Neurobiology of substance use disorders.

2.2.2.4.2. Trauma-Informed care.

2.2.2.4.3. Recovery supports.

2.2.2.4.4. Care of vulnerable populations.

2.2.2.4.5. Integrated care.

2.2.2.5. Establishment of formal relationship with community recovery
support organizations.

2.2.2.6. A process for regular patient and family engagement to insure
that the design and evaluation of patient care services for
people with SLID incorporate patient perspectives.

2.3. The Contractor shall ensure that personnel provided from each hospital includes
one (1) Project Coordinator, who:

2.2i.1. Coordinates the practice changes resulting from the process
improvement projects as required in this Agreement; and

2.3.2. Develop and update work plans for each process improvement project.

2.4. The Contractor shall monitor implementation of work plans to ensure hospitals
are achieving progress toward their performance goals.

2.5. The Contractor shall ensure the availability of resources and technical
assistance inclusive of, but not limited to a Community of Practice, focused on
sharing information and experiences related to addiction care in hospital
systems, for the hospital personnel provided.

2.6. The Contractor shall ensure that hospitals develop a process to assess
consistent identification and care for patients with SUDs across all provider

• practices in the hospital system, inclusive of emergency services, acute care
units and networked outpatient medical practices.

2.7. The Contractor shall establish performance metrics for each of the process
improvement projects, for Department approval, and collect data at baseline and
completion of projects.

2.8. The Contractor shall submit all subcontracts to the Department for rev^^nd
approval within 30 days of the Subcontract effective date. ^7^

Foundation for Healthy Communities Exhibit A - Amendment #6 Contractor Initials ^
SS-2017-BDAS-02-MATSE-01-A06 5/31/2023

Page 2 of 4 Date

Rev.09/06/18
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Medication Assisted Services

Exhibit A, Amendment #6

3. Reporting

3.1. The Contractor shall provide quarterly status reports that must include, but are
not limited to:

3.1.1. A list of process improvement projects per hospital.

3.1.2. A description of progress made, per hospital; including, but not limited
to:

3.1.2.1. Establishment of a Project Coordinator.

3.1.2.2. Development of a work plan for each process improvement
project.

3.1.2.3. Implementation of work plans.

3.1.2.4. Baseline data of performance metrics.

3.1.2.5. Assessment of consistency of SLID care across the hospital
system.

3.1.3. Training and technical assistance provided by the Contractor.

3.1.4. Barriers to implementation.

3.1.5. Other progress to-date.

3.2. The Contractor must submit a final report to the Department within 45 days of
conclusion of the contract that includes, but is not limited to: ■

3.2.1. A comprehensive list of hospitals and their process improvement
projects.

3.2.2. Summary of progress made in each hospital including, but not limited
to:

3.2.2.1. Implementation of work plans.

3.2.2.2. Assessment of consistency of SLID care across the hospital
system.

3.2.2.3. Baseline data and final data on performance metrics for each
process improvement project at each hospital.

3.2.3. Aggregate change in performance metrics for all hospitals for process
improvement projects defined in 2.2.1.

3.2.4. Training and technical assistance provided by the Contractor.

3.2.5. Barriers to implementation.

3.2.6. Lessons learned and recommendations for future development.

3.3. The Contractor shall prepare and submit ad hoc data reports, res|
periodic surveys, and other data collection requests as deemed nece^s:

Foundation for Healthy Communities Exhibit A-Amendment #6 Contractor Initials
SS-2017-BDAS-02-MATSE-01-A06 5/31/2023

Page 3 of 4 Date

Rev.09/06/18
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Medication Assisted Services

Exhibit A, Amendment #6

the Department and/or Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services
Administration (SAMHSA).

4. Performance Measures

4.1. The Contractor shall meet or exceed six (6) subcontracted hospitals that:

4.1.1. Complete tv/o (2) or more process improvement projects to improve
care for patients with SUD within their hospital systems;

4.1.2. Collect and report baseline and final data on performance measures
for no less than 12 process improvement projects;

4.1.3. Demonstrate an increased number of patients screened using
validated tools for SUD screening; and

4.1.4. Demonstrate an increased number of brief interventions conducted by
providers with patients who screen ..positive fpr^SUD.

4.2. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department to enhance contract
management, improve results and adjust program delivery and policy based on

.  successful outcomes.

Foundation for Healthy Communities
SS-2017-BDAS-02-MATSE-01-A06

Rev.09/06/18

Exhibit A - Amendment #6

Page 4 of 4

Contractor Initials

Date

— OS -

5/31/2023
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New Hampshire Department of Health arid Human Services
Medication Assisted Services

EXHIBIT B, Amendment #6

Pavment Terms

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 36.16% Federal funds:

1.1.1. 5.47% from the Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatment
Block Grant Covid Supplemental, as awarded March 11, 2021
by the United States Department ■ of Health and Human
Services, the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services
Administration, ALN 93.959 FAIN TI083509.

1.1.2. 30.30% Federal funds from the Substance Abuse Prevention
and Treatment Block Grant, as awarded September 16. 2021
by the United States Department of Health and Human
Services, the Substance Abuse ̂and Mental Health Services
Administration, ALN 93.959 FAIN TI083464, TI084659 and
TI085821.

1.1.3. 0.39% Federal funds from the State Opioid Response Grant, as
awarded August 9, 2021, by the United States Department of
Health and Human Services, the Substance Abuse and Mental
Health Services Administration, ALN # 93.788, FAIN TI083326.

1.2. 7.18% General funds.

-1.3. 56.66% Other funds (Governor's Commission).

2. For the purposes of this Agreement the Department has identified:

2.1. The Contractor as a Subrecipient, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.331.

2.2. The Agreement as NON-R&D, in accordance with 2 CFR §200.332.

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures
incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with
the approved line items, as specified in Exhibits B-1, Budget through Exhibit B-
8, Budget, Amendment #6.

4. The Contractor shall submit an invoice with supporting documentation to the
Department no later than the twentieth (20th) working day of the month
following the month in which the services were provided. The Contractor shall
ensure each invoice:

4.1. Includes the Contractor's Vendor Number issued upon registering with
New Hampshire Department of Administrative Services.

4.2. Is submitted in a form that is provided by or otherwise acceptable to the
Department.

4.3. Identifies and requests payment for allowable costs incurred in the
previous month. '—

SS-2017-BDAS-02-MATSE-01-A06 C-2.0 Contractor Initials
5/31/2023

Foundation for Healthy Communities Page 1 of 3 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Medication Assisted Services

EXHIBIT B, Amendment #6

4.4. Includes supporting documentation of allowable costs with each invoice
that may include, but are not limited to, time sheets, payroll records,
receipts for purchases, and proof of expenditures, as applicable.

4.5. Is completed, dated and returned to the Department with the supporting
documentation for allowable expenses to initiate payment.

4.6. Is assigned an electronic signature, includes supporting documentation,
and is emailed to dhhs.invoicesforcontracts@dhhs.nh.qov or niailed to;

Program Manager
Department of Health and Human Services
105 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

5. The Department shall make payments to the Contractor within thirty (30) days
of receipt of each invoice and supporting documentation for authorized
expenses, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice.

6. The final invoice and supporting documentation for authorized expenses shall
be due to the Department no later than forty (40) days after the contract
completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7
Completion Date.

7. Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
limited to adjusting amounts . within the price limitation and adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified.

8. Audits

8.1. The Contractor must email an annual audit to dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov if
any of the following conditions exist:

8.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

8.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lll-b, pertaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or more.

8.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to
submit an annual financial audit.

8.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual Single
Audit performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA)
to dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov within 120 days after the close^-gfiMhe

SS-2017-BDAS-02-MATSE-01-A06 C-2.0. Contractor Initials ̂
5/31/2023

Foundation for Healthy Communities Page 2 of 3 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Medication Assisted Services

EXHIBIT 8, Amendment #6

Contractor's fiscal year, conducted in accordance with the
requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F of the Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal awards.

8.2.1. The Contractor shall submit a copy of any Single Audit findings
and any associated corrective action plans. The Contractor

.  shall submit quarterly progress reports on the status of
implementation of the corrective action plan.

8.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an
annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

8.4. Any Contractor that receives an amount equal to or greater than
$250,000 from the Department during a single fiscal year, regardless
of the funding source, may be required, at a minimum, to submit annual
financial audits performed by an independent CPA if the Department's
risk assessment determination indicates the Contractor is high-risk.

8.5. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Agreement, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments made under the
Agreement to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.

SS-2017-BDAS-02-MATSE-01-A06

Foundation for Healthy Communities

C-2.0

Page 3 of 3

Contractor initials

Date
5/31/2023



Em«k«» O: Mn0«O<-«O4-C2F-a«C»<COeFZI17DM

ExMM B4, Amendmml M Budg*!

New Hampshire Departmefli of Health and Human Services

Contractor Nanw: FounOatlOfl For HaaStiy CemnunKiaa

Budget Raqucal for Medication Aaaittod Services

Budget Pcrted: 8FY 202«

ToUl Prooram Coel

Total Direct Indirect Total OirKi Mir act Total

t2.7ee.oo 5 S8.04e.oo 3 3 3 3  85.200.00 5

s.ser.eo 3 41.151.00 3 3 3 3  35.784.00 3

t.soo.oo 3 t t.soo.oo 5 3 3 3  10.000.00 3

3 3 5 3 3 3 •

3 3 3 3 3 1

I 3 3 3 3 3 3

3 3 3 3 3

3 3 3 3 $ 3

3 3 3 3 3 3

3 3 3 3 3 3

i 3 3 3 3 3 3

i 3 . 3 3 3 3 3 • -

%  304.es 45.70 3 350.55 3 3 3 3  304.05 3

•  720.00 3 5.520.00 3 5 3  4.800.00 3

Sit.SO 3 3.S21.SO 3 3 3 3  3.410.00 3 511.50 3

. 3 3 3 3 3 3

73.05 3 500.05 3 3 3 3  487.00 3 75.05

30.00 3 - 230.00 3 3 3 3  200.00 3 30.00

3 . 3 3 3 3 3 • -

1.245.00 3 0.545.00 3 3 3 3  0.300.00 3 1.245.00 3

3 3 3 3 3

3 3 3 3 3

i . 3 3 3 3 3
-

%  2.SOOOO 3 375.00 3 2.87500 3 3 3 3  2.500.00 3

3  2.000.00 i 300.00 3 2.300.00 3 3 3 3  2.000.00 3 300.00

3 273.585.00 3 3 3 3  273.585.00

3 3 3 3 3 3
-

2ee.es 3 2.201.05 3 3 3 3  1.003.00 3

200.55 3 2.227.55 3 3 3  1.037.00 3 200.55

i 3 . 3 3 3
-

TOTAL ^  430,e(e.ts i 21^«.35 3 454.107.00 3  - 5 3  430.S80.55

indirect As A Percent of Direct

Medication Assisted Sorvices

SS-ZOtT'BDAS^-MATSE-Ot-AOe

Foundation For HosKriy Cotmudes
Edd&B B-e. Amendmenl M Bulgel

Cortredor Mlia&.
[21

S/31/2023
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State ofNew Hampshire, do hereby certify that FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY

COMMUNITIES is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on October 28,

1968. 1 further certily that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good

standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 63943

Certificate Number: 0005780289

©

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the Stale of New Hampshire,

this 19th day of. May A.D. 2022.

David M. Scanlan

Secretar)' of State
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Foundation /or
Healthy CJommunities

CERTIFICATE OF VOTE/AUTHORITY

I, Steohm Ahnen ■ of the Foundation for He^thv Commifflties. do hereby certify that:

1. T am the duly elected .SecretafvjTreasurer of the Foundation for Healfcv Communities:

2. The following are true copies of two resolutions duly adopted by action of unanimous consent

of the Board of Directors of the Eoimdation Healthy Communities, duly adopted on October

18: 2021:

RESOLVED: That this corporation, the Foundation for Healthy Communities, enters into any and all
contracts, amendments, renewals, revisions or modifications thereto, with the State of New Hampshire,
acting through its Department of Health and Human Services.

RESOLVED: That the Executive Director or the Vice President of Quality Improvement or the
Secretary / Treasurer for the Foundation for Healthy Communities are hereby authorized on behalf of
this corporation to enter into said contracts with the State, and to execute any and all documents,
agreements, and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, as he/she
may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate. Peter Ames is the duly ̂ pointed Executive Director
and Kristine Hering is the duly appointti Vice President of Quality Improvement and Stephen Ahnen
is the duly appointed Secretary/Treasurer of the corporation.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force
and effect as of the date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is
attached. This authority remains valid for thirty (30) days fix)m the date of this Certificate
of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of New Hampshire, will rely
on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent
that there are any limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the coiporation in
contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

IN WITNES S WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as the Secretary/Treasurer of the

Foundation for HealthVlCommunities this 30^'.daV.of May 2023.

BOARD MEMBER
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ACOKO- CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
TFAGERSON

DATE (MM/DOnrYYYl

6/7/2022

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES. NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT; If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
thk rortifiratfl rinos not confer riahts to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER License #1780862
HUB International New England
275 US Route 1
Cumberland Foresido, ME 04110

c^N^ACT Gabe Reissman

phone fax
JA^C. No. ExH: 'A/C. No):

^i^r^lsqsPabe.reissman^.hubmternational.com
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC#

INSURER A: Hartford Casualtv Insurance ComDanv 29424

New Hampshire Hospital Assoc.
The Foundation for Healthy Communities
Attn: Linda Levesquo
125 Airport Road
Concord, NH 03301

INSURER BrTwin Cltv Fire lnsurance''ComDanv 29459

INSURERC ;

INSURER E :

INSURERF:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LIB. TYPE OF INSURANCE

ADDL

lusa
SUBR
WVD

POUCY NUMBER
POUCY EPF
tMMfPPrYYYYl

POLICY EXP
IMM/DO/YYYYI

LIMITS

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABIUTY

CLAIMS-MADE | X | OCCUR
EACH OCCURRENCE

08SBA VW2923 SB 6/22/2022 6/22/2023
DAMAGE TO RENTED
PRPMISFS <Ea oceurrencel

MED EXP (Any ona pqrsoni

PERSONAL A ADV INJURY

GEWL AGGREGATE UMIT APPLIES PER:
GENERAL AGGREGATE

POLICY

OTHER:

LOC PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY
C0M8INE0 SINGLE LIMIT
fEa nex3tieni\

ANY AUTO

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (P6t oefsoni

S ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS . BODILY INJURY (Per acddent)

<Pw»cckteni'
RTY DAMAGE

1,000,000

300,000

10,000

1,000,000

2,000,000

2,000,000

UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS LlAB

DED

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE
2,000,000

08SBA VW2923 SB 6/22/2022 6/22/2023
AGGREGATE

2,000,000

RETENTIONS 10,000
WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' UABIUTY y / N
ANYPROPRIETORJPARTNER/EXECUTIVE I [

|{ yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

08WECIV5293 6/22/2022 6/22/2023

PER
statute

OTH-
FR

E.L- EACH ACCIDENT
500,000

E.L DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE
500,000

E.L DISEASE - POUCY UMIT
500,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Addltlonel Remsrlcs Schedule, mey be ettiehed H more spece I* required!

Foundation for Healthy Communities is cx>nsidered a Named insured for the above mentioned policies.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

State of NH

Department of Health & Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25(2016/03) © 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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Foundation/or
Healthy Gommunities

Foundation for Healthy Communities

Mission Statement

The mission of the Foundation for Healthy

Communities is to build healthier communities

for all by leading partnerships, fostering
collaboration, and creating innovative solutions

to advance health and health care.

125 Airpon Road | Concord. Nil 03301 | Phone; (603) 225-0900 | Fax: (603) 225-4346
www.healthynh.org | inro@heallhynh.org
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December 31, 2021 and 2020
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l^BerryDunn

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Trustees

Foundation for Healthy Communities

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Foundation for Healthy Communities
(Foundation), which comprise the statements of financial position as of December 31, 2021 and 2020,
and the related statements of activities and changes in net assets, and cash flows for the years then
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Foundation as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the changes in its net
assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and 'the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are required to be independent of the Foundation and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Sfafemenfs

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements In
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management Is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Foundations ability to
continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to
be issued.

Moine • New Hampshire • Massochusetts • Connecticut • West Virginia • Arizona

berrydunn.com
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Board of Trustees

Foundation for Healthy Communities
Page 2

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financiai Statements

Our objectives .are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting .from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is
a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made
by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and Government
Auditing Standards, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due

to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Foundation's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Foundation's ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain intemal control related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 18,
2022 on our consideration of the Foundation's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Foundation's internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering the Foundation's internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

Manchester, New Hampshire
.  .... . April 18, 2022
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Statements of Financial Position

December 31, 2021 and 2020

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Due from affiliate

Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

Investments

Property and equipment
Leasehold improvements
Equipment and furniture

Less accumulated depreciation

Property and equipment, net

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities

Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and related amounts
Due to a^liate
Deferred revenue

Total current liabilities and total liabilities

Net assets

Without donor restrictions

Operating
Internally designated

Total without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

2021 2020

$ 518,687 $ 345,201

194,633 547,234

141,135 115,780
10.650 10.334

865.085 1.018.549

1.082.677 962.689

1,118 1,118

147.427 147.427

148,545 148,545

148.545 148.145

400

$1,947,762 $1,981,638

$  22,995 $  21,119

109,901 91,070

98,369 97,731

9.110 6.949

240.375 216.869

1,137,512 923,080

379.316 489.296

1,516,828 1,412,376

190.559 352.393

1.707.387 1.764.769

£1.947.762 $1.981.638

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

-3-
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets

Year Ended December 31, 2021

Without Donor Restrictions

•Revenues

Foundation support
Program services
Seminars, meetings, and
workshops

Interest and dividend income

Net realized and unrealized gain
on Investments

Gifts and donations

Grant support /
Net assets released from

restrictions

Net assets released from internally
designated

Total revenues

Expenses
Salaries, taxes and benefits
Other operating
Program services
Seminars, meetings, and
workshops

Depreciation

Total expenses

Change in net assets from
operations and total
change in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

Internally
Ooeratina Designated

$ 483,121 $
1,235,129

123,729
16,943

155,498

5

Total

With Donor

Restrictions

408,812

246.314

1,589,529
120,006
715,818

29,366
400

2.455J19

214,432

923.080

136,334

(246.3141

$ 483,121 $
1.235,129

123,729
16,943

155,498
5

545,146

383,312

(545,146)

Total

$ 483,121
1,235,129

123,729

16,943

155,498
5

383,312

2.669.551 (109.9801 2.559.571 (161.8341 2.397.737

1,589,529
120,006
715,818

29,366
400

2.455.119

1,589,529
120,006
715,818

29,366
400

2.455.119

(109,980) 104,452 (161,834) (57,382)

489.296 1.412.376 352.393 1.764.769

$1.137.512 $ 379.316 $1.516.828 $ 190.559 $1.707.387

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

-4-
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets

Year Ended December 31, 2020

Without Donor Restrictions

Revenues

Foundation support
Program services
Seminars, meetings, and
workshops

Interest and dividend income

Net realized and unrealized gain
on investments

Gifts and donations

Grant support

Net assets released from

restrictions

Net assets released from internally
designated

Total revenues

Expenses
Salaries, taxes and benefits
Other operating
Program services
Seminars, meetings, and
workshops

Depreciation
Recovery of bad debts

Total expenses

Change in net assets from
operations and total
change in net assets

Net,assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

Goeratina

Internally
Desianated Total

With Donor

Restrictions Total

E  463,120
3,396,795

$ $ 463,120
3,396,795

$ $ 463,120
3,396,795

22,033
18,519 -

22,033
18,519 -

22,033

18,519

93,504
196

- 93,504
196

567,282

93,504
196

567,282

338,026 237,213 575,239 (575,239) -

286.413 f286.4131 -

4.618.606 f49.2001 4.569.406 (7.967) 4.561.449

1,462.230
124,109

2.865,199

-

1,462,230
124,109

2,865,199

-

1,462,230
124,109

2,865,199

33,130
2,747
(400)

- 33,130
2,747

f400)

-

33,130
2,747
f4001

4.487.015 4.487.015 4.487.015

131,591 (49,200) 82,391 (7,957) 74,434

791.489 538.496 1.329.985 360.350 1.690.335

$ 923.080 $ 489.296 $1,412,376 $  352.393 $1,764,769

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

-5-
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

2021 2020

Cash flows from operating activities
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash

provided (used) by operating activities
Depreciation
Net realized and unrealized gain on Investments
Change in operating assets and liabilities

Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses
Due from affiliate

Accounts payable
Accrued payr6U.and related amounts
Due to a^liates
Deferred revenue

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of investments

Proceeds from sale of Investments

Net cash provided by investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

$  (57,382) $ 74,434

(155,498) (93,504)

352,601 (189,782)
(316) (724)

(25,355) (3,250)
1,876 (121,842)

18,831 44,885

638 36,044

2.161 n.0641

137.956 f252.0561

(1,890)
35.510 5.255

35.510 3.365

173,466 (248,691)

345.201 593.892

$ 518.667 $ 345.201

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

-6-
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2021 and 2020

Oroanizatlon

Foundation for Healthy Communities (Foundation) was organized to conduct various activities relating
to healthcare delivery process improvement, health policy, and the creation of healthy cornmunities.
The Foundation is controlled by New Hampshire Hospital Association (Association) whose purpose is
to assist its members in improving the health status of the people receiving healthcare in New
Hampshire.

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estimates

■The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles (U.S. GAAP).requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Basis of Presentation

Net assets and revenues, expenses, gains, and losses are classified as follows based on
existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the
Foundation. These net assets may be used at the discretion of the Foundation's management
and the Bo.ard of Trustees.

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulatiohs imposed by donors and
grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met by
actions of the Foundation or by the passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in
nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity. Donor
restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions. When a
restriction expires, net assets are .reclassified from net assets with donor restrictions to net
assets without donor restrictions in the statement of activities and changes in net assets. At
December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Foundation did not have any funds to be maintained in
perpetuity.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of reporting in the statements of cash flows, the Foundation considers all bank
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

From time-to-time, the Foundation's total cash deposits exceed the federally insured limit. The
Foundation has not incurred any losses and does not expect any in the future.

-7-
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2021 and 2020

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding
balances. Management provides for probable uncollectible amounts through a charge to earnings
and a credit to a valuation allowance based on its assessment of the current status of individual
accounts. Balances that are still outstanding after management has used reasonable collection
efforts are written off through a charge to the valuation allowarice and a credit to accounts
receivable. Management believes all accounts receivable are collectible. Credit is extended without
collateral.

Investments

Investments in equity securities with readily determinable fair values and all investments in debt
securities are measured at fair value in the statements of financial position. Interest and dividends
and realized and unrealized gains and losses are included in the changes in net assets from
operations.

Investments, in general, are exposed to various risks such as interest rate, credit, and overall
market volatility. As such, it is reasonably possible that changes in the values of investments will
occur in the near term and that such changes could materially affect the amounts reported in the
statements of financial position.

Propertv and Equipment

Property and equipment acquisitions are recorded at cost. Depreciation is provided over the
. estimated useful lives of each class of depreciable asset and is computed using the straight-line
method.

Employee Fringe Benefits

The Foundation has an "earned time" plan under which each employee earns paid leave for each
period worked. These hours of paid leave may be used for vacation or illnesses. Hours earned but
not used are vested with the employee and may not exceed 30 days at year-end. The Foundation
accrues a liability for such paid leave as it is earned.

Grants and Contributions

Grants awarded and contributions received in advance of expenditures are reported as support
with donor restrictions if they are received with stipulations that limit the use of the grants or
contributions. When a grant or contribution restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time
restriction ends or a purpose restriction Is accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are
reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statement of activities and
changes in net assets as net assets released from restrictions. If there are unused grant funds at
the time the grant restrictions expire, management seeks authorization from the grantor to retain
the unused grant funds to be used for other unspecified projects: If the Foundation receives
authorization from the grantor, then the Board of Trustees or management internally designates
the use of those funds for future projects. These amounts are released from net assets with donor
restrictions to internally designated net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the
statement of activities and changes in net assets as net assets released from restrictions.

-8-
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2021 and 2020

Grant funds conditional upon submission of documentation of qualifying expenditures or matching
requirements are deemed to be earned and reported as revenues when the Foundation has met
the grant conditions.

The amount of such funds the Foundation will ultimately receive depends on the actual scope of
each program, as well as the availability of funds. The ultimate disposition of grant funds is subject
to audit by the awarding agencies.

Grant funds awarded for which restrictions have been met in the year of award are reported in the
statement of activities and changes in net assets in program services revenues and expenses.

Contributions of long-lived assets are reported as support for net assets without donor restrictions
unless donor stipulations specify how the donated assets must be used. Gifts of long-lived assets
with explicit restrictions that specify how the assets are to be used and gifts of cash or other assets
that must be used to acquire long-lived assets are reported as support with donor restrictions.
Absent explicit donor stipulations about how long these long-lived assets must be maintained, the
Foundation reports expirations of donor restrictions when the donated or acquired long-lived
assets are placed in service.

Income Taxes

The Foundation is a not-for-profit corporation as described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code (Code) and is exempt from federal income taxes on "related income pursuant to
Section 501 (a) of the Code.

Subsequent Events

For purposes of the preparation of these financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP, the
Foundation has considered transactions or events occurring through April 18, 2022, which was the
date that the financial statements were available to be issued.

2. Availability and Liquiditv of Financial Assets

The Foundation regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating needs and other
contractual commitments, while also striving to optimize the investment of its available funds.

For purposes of analyzing resources available to meet general expenditures over a 12-month
period, the Foundation considers all expenditures related to its ongoing activities and general" and
administration, as well as the conduct of services undertaken to support those activities to be
general expenditures.

■  In addition to financial assets available to meet general expenditures over the next 12 months, the
Foundation operates with a balanced budget and anticipates collecting sufficient revenue to cover
general expenditures not covered by donor-restricted resources.

As of December 31, 2021, the Foundation has working capital of $624,710 and average days
(based on normal expenditures) cash on hand of 210, which includes cash and cash equivalents
and investments, less donor restricted funds.

-9-
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2021 and 2020

The following financial assets could readily be available within one year of the statements of
financial position date to meet general expenditure at December 31:

2021 2020

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 518,667 $ 345.201
Accounts receivable, net 194,633 547,234
Due from affiliate 141,135
Investments /5ononc\
Internally designated funds (379,316) (489,296)
Donor restricted funds —(190,559) —(352,393)

Financial assets available at year end for current use
to meet general expenditures $ 1,367,237 $ 1,129,2^

At December 31. 2021 and 2020, internally designated net assets represent unused grapt funds to
be used for other unspecified projects by management over the next 12 months. The internally
designated net assets are included in cash and cash equivalents and accounts receivable, net.

3. Investments and Fair Value Measurement

Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic
820, Fair Value Measurement, defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value
in accordance with U.S. GAAP, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements.

FASB ASC Topic 820 defines fair value as the exchange price that would be received for an asset
or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the
asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date.
FASB ASC Topic 820 also establishes a fair value hierarchy which requires an entity to maximize,
the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair
value.

The standard describes three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair value:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) for.identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the
entity has the ability to access as of the measurement date.

Level 2: Significant other observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for
similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices in markets that are not active, and other inputs
that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3: Significant unobservable inputs that reflect an entity's own assumptions about the
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability.

-10-
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2021 and 2020

The Foundation's investments are measured at fair value on a recurring basis and are considered
Level 1.

The composition of investments as of December 31 is set forth in the following table. Investments
are stated at fair value.

2021 2020

Marketable equity securities $ ' 204,492 $ 192,065
Mutual funds 878.185 • 770,624

$ 1.082.677 S 962.689

4. Net Assets with Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions of $190,559 and $352,393 consisted of specific grant programs
as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. The grant programs relate to improvements to
access and the delivery of healthcare services.

5. Conditional Promise to Give

During 2016, the Foundation was awarded a grant from the State of New Hampshire in an amount
not to exceed $1,800,000 to facilitate the expansion of New Hampshire's addiction identification
and overdose prevention activities. Subsequent to the original award, the State of New Hampshire
amended the award amount increasing the grant to an amount not to exceed $4,575,824. Receipt
.of the grant and recognition of the related revenue was conditional upon incurring qualifying
expenditures. For the year ended December 31, 2020, the Foundation recognized program and
grant support related to this award in the amount of $1,104,493. As of December 31, 2020, the
Foundation had received and recognized the full award. No additional awards occurred during
2021.

6. Related Party Transactions

The Foundation leases space from the Association on a monthly basis. Rental expense under this
lease for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 was $41,184 and $41,255, respectively."

The Association provides various accounting, public relation and janitorial services to the
Foundation. The amount expensed for these services in 2021 and 2020 was $185,431 and
$173,468, respectively. In addition, the Association bills the Foundation for its allocation of shared
costs. As'of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Foundation owed the Association $98,369 and
$97,731, respectively, for services and products provided by the Association.

The Association owed the Foundation $141,135 and $115,780 as of December 31, 2021 and
2020, respectively, for support allocated to the Foundation. For the years ended December 31,
202l'and 2020, the Foundation received support from the Association in the amount of $483,121
and $463,120, respectively.
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2021 and 2020

7. Retirement Plan

The Foundation participates in the Association's 401 (k) profit-sharing plan, which covers
substantially ail employees and allows for employee contributions of up to the maximum allowed
under Internal Revenue Service regulations. Employer contributions are discretionary and are
determined annually by the Foundation. Retirement plan expense for 2021 and 2020 was $55,724
and $48,803, respectively.

8. Functional Expenses

The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributable to more than
one program or supporting function. Therefore, these expenses require allocation on a reasonable
basis that is consistently applied. The expenses allocated include salaries and related taxes,
allocated based on the estimated time utilized on programs, and insurance and depreciation,
allocated based on the estimated square footage of the total building.

Expenses by function and natural classification are as follows:

2021 2020

Program services
Salaries and related taxes $1,337,571 $1,256,722
Office supplies and other 508,376 548,910
Occupancy 38,449 37,500
Subrecipients ' 2,068,198
Subcontractors 251,845 298,400
Seminars, meetings and workshops 35,505 36,700
Insurance 3,346 3,138
Depreciation —^ 2J^

Total program services 2,175,412 4,251,766

General and administrative
Salaries and related taxes 251,958 205,508
Office supplies and other 3,689 3,194
Occupancy 21,749 24,306
Recovery of bad debts * (400)
Insurance 2,231 2,092
Depreciation

Total general and administrative 279,707 —235,249

$2.455.119 $4.487.015
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BerryDunn

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND

OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Trustees

Foundation for Healthy Communities

We have audited, in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the financial statements of Foundation for Healthy Communities
(Foundation), which comprise the statement of financial position as of December 31, 2021, and the
related statements of activities and changes in net assets, and cash flows for the year then ended, and
the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated April 18. 2022.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Foundation's
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that
are 'appropriate in the circum'stances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Foundation's
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Foundation's
internal control. '

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basts. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the Foundation's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected,
on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those
charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.

Maine • New Hampshire • Massachusetts • Connecticut • West Virginia • Arizona

berrydunn.com
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Board of Trustees

Foundation for Healthy Communities

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Foundation's financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Foundation's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Foundation's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Manchester, New, Hampshire
April 18, 2022
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BerryDunn

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COWIPLIANCE
FOR THE MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM; REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE; AND REPORT ON SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF

FEDERAL AWARDS REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Trustees

Foundation for Healthy Communities

Report on Compliance for the Major Federal Program

Opinion on the Major Federal Program

We have audited Foundation for Healthy Communities' (Foundation) compliance with the types of
compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the Office of Management and Budget
Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal program for
the year ended December 31, 2021. The Foundation's major federal program is identified in the
summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, the Foundation complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements
referred to abpve that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal program for the year
ended December 31, 2021.

Basis for Opinion on the Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards;
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements
-for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform
Guidance are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of
our report.

We are required to be independent of the Foundation and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit..We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for
each major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Foundation's
compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance.with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of
laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the
Foundation's'federal programs.

Moine • New Hampshire • Mossochusetts • Connecticut • West Virginia • Arizona
berrydunn.com
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Board of Trustees • ,
Foundation for Healthy Communities

Auditor's ResponsibUities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material nonconipliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an
opinion on the Foundation's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and the
Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting
material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user of the report on compliance about the Foundation's compliance with the requirements
of each major federal program as a whole.

In performing an. audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. Government
Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a
test basis, evidence regarding the Foundation's compliance with the compliance requirements
referred to above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

•  Obtain an understanding of the Foundation's internal control over compliance relevant to the audit
in' order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report
on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Foundation's internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in
internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be.prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Board of Trustees

Foundation for Healthy Communities

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify
all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses
as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over
compliance may exist that were not identified:

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness pf internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report iS not suitable for any other purpose.

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance

We have audited the financial statements of the Foundation as of and for the year ended December
31 2021 and have issued our report thereon dated April 18, 2022, which contained an unmodified
opinion on those financial statements. Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion
on the financial statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards
is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the Uniform Guidance, and ts not a
required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements of to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal
awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Manchester, New Hampshire
April 18, 2022
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended December 31, 2021

Federal Program

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

Pass-through programs:

State of New Hampshire Department of
Health and Human Services

Hospital Preparedness Program (HPP) and Public
- Health Emergency Preparedness (PHEP)
Aligned Cooperative Agreements

State Rural Hospital Flexibility Program

National Bioterrorism Hospital Preparedness
Program

Cooperative Agreement to Support Navigators in
Federally-facilitated and State Partnership
Marketplaces

Total expenditures of federal awards

Federal

AL

Number

93.074

Small Rural Hospital Improvement Grant Program 93.301

93.241

93.889

93.332

Pass-Through
Entity

Identifying Federal
Number Expenditures

05-95-90-

902510-2239 $ 745,459

05-95-90-

901010-2219

05-95-90-

902010-2218

6U3REP20064

9-01-00

NAVACA21040

0-01-00

123,772

67,797

2,000

16.288

$  955.316
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMNIUNITIES

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended December 31, 2021

1. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (Schedule) includes the federal
grant activity of Foundation for Healthy Communities (Foundation) under programs of the federal
government for the year ended December 31. 2021. The information in the Schedule is
presented in accordance with Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a portion of the operations of the
Foundation, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net
assets or cash flows of the Foundation.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported in the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance,
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

3. Indirect Cost Rate

The Foundation has elected not to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under
the Uniform Guidance.
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year Ended December 31, 2021

Section I. - Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued:
.  Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiency(ies) identified not

considered to be material weaknesses?

Noncompliance material to financial statements
noted?

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:
Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficlency{ies) identified not

considered to be material weaknesses?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance
for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with
2 CFR 200.516(a)?

Unmodified

yes

yes

yes

yes

yes

Unmodified

yes

Identification of Maior Programs

CFDA Numberfs)

93.074

no

none reported

no

no

none reported

no

Name of Federal Program or Cluster

Hospital Preparedness Program (HPP) and Public Health
Emergency Preparedness (PHEP) Aligned Cooperative
Agreements

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

$750,000

j< yes _ no

Section II. - Findings Relating to the Financial Statements Which are Required to be Reported
in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

None noted

Section III. - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None noted
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings

Year Ended December 31, 2021

Section I. - Findings Relating to the Financial Statements Which are Required to be Reported

in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

None noted

Section 11. - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None noted
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Fbunaatipn^r
Healthy iGommuriities

BOARD OF DIREaORS 2023

Lauren Collins-Cline, Chair

Betsey Rhynhart, Vice Chair

Stephen Ahnen, Secretary / Treasurer

Peter Ames, exofficio

Sue Mooney, MD, Immediate Past Chair

Deb Broadhead, RN

James Culhane

Mike Decelle

Cherie Holmes, MD

FuadKahn, MD, MBA

Sally Kraft, MD

Eileen Liponis

Lisa Madden

Tom Manion

Holly McCormack, MSN

Colin McHugh

Jeremy Roberge, CPA

John Skevington

Susan Walsh

Andrew Watt, MD

Steve Saitzman

Annette Escalante

Director, Corporate Communications & PR, Catholic Medical Center

Vice President, Population Health, Concord Hospital

President, New Hampshire Hospital Association

Executive Director, Foundation for Healthy Communities

President & CEO, Alice Peck Day Memorial Hospital

Director, Healthcare Management, Anthem

President & CEO, Lake Sunapee Visiting Nurses Association

Dean, UNH Manchester

CMO, Cheshire Medical Center

Sr. Director of Behavioral and Community Health

Mass General Brigham, Wentworth-Douglass Hospital

Vice President of Population Health, Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health

Executive Director, New Hampshire Food Bank

President and CEO, Riverbend Community Mental Health Center

President and CEO, New London Hospital

CEO, Cottage Hospital

President & CEO, Southern New Hampshire Health

President & CEO, Huggins Hospital

CEO, Parkland Medical Center

Strategic Business Lead, NH, Harvard Pilgrim Health Care

CMIO, Catholic Medical Center

President and CEO, New Hampshire Corhmunity Loan Fund

Senior Vice President, Easterseals/Farnum Center
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DANIEL L. ANDRUS

Professional Experience

March 2020-Present

June 2008-March 2020

June 1979-June 2008

June 1979-June 1985

June 1985-May 1987
June 1987-July 1991
July 1991-October 1994

October 1994-September 1996
September 1996-March 1998

March 1998-September 2003
September 2003-July 2007
August 2007-June 2008

Director of the Substance Use Disorder

Treatment Project,
Foundation for Healthy Communities
Concord, New Hampshire
Oversee grant funded initiatives to improve the
capability of the health care system to provide
care for patients with substance use disorder.
Currently working with eleven hospitals

Fire Chief and Emergency Management
Coordinator

City of Concord, New Hampshire
Oversaw a department of 100 employees and
a $14.2 million budget providing fire protection
and emergency services to a capital city of
approximately 43,000 residents

Salt Lake City Fire Department
Salt Lake City, Utah
Firefighter/Emergency Medical Technician
Firefighter/Paramedic
Fire Lieutenant

Public Information Officer/Administrative

Assistant to the Fire Chief/Department Total
Quality Coordinator
Station Captain
Division Chief for Communications and

Emergency Management
Fire Marshal

Battalion Chief

Deputy Chief of Administration

Education

Master of Science, Economics, University of Utah
Master of Public Administration, University of Utah
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Bachelor of Science, Fire Service Administration,. Western Oregon State College
Bachelor of Science. Management, University of Utah
Graduate, Executive Fire Officer Program, National Fire Academy
Graduate, Graduate Certificate Program in Conflict Resolution, University of Utah

Certifications

Certified Professional in Healthcare Quality, National Association for Healthcare
Quality .

Certified Professional in Patient Safety, Institute for Healthcare Improvement

Professional and Community Service Highlights

Current

Member, Board of Directors, New Hampshire Harm Reduction Coalition, October
2022-Present

Addiction and Recovery Committee, New Hampshire Council of Churches, 2020-
Present

Member, 2020-Present
Chair, 2022-Present

Member, Board of Trustees, Granite (formerly Concord Regional) Visiting Nurse
Association, 2017-Present

Member, Health Committee, NAACP Manchester Chapter, 2022-Present
Member, New Hampshire Public Health Association, March 2014-Present
Member, New Hampshire Technical Institute Paramedic Program Advisory

Board, 2012-Present
Member, Public Health Advisory Committee Executive Committee, Granite

United Way, January 2014-December 2019, March 2021-Present
Volunteer, New Hampshire Harm Reduction Coalition, 2021-Present

Past

Member, Health Care Task Force, Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Other
Drugs, 2020-2022

Member, Prevention Task Force, Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Other
Drugs, 2021-2022

Member, Concord Rotary Club, March 2010-June 2020
Member, Fire Control Board, State of New Hampshire, 2010-2019 (Chair 2018-

2019)
Member, Capital Area Public Health Network, June 2008-December 2019
Member, Board of Directors, Capital Area Mutual Aid Fire Compact, June 2008-

December 2019

Member. Lakes Region Community College Fire Science Program Advisory
Board, 2012-2019
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Member, Northern New England Metropolitan Medical Response Steering
Committee, 2011-2017

Paramedic,, New Hampshire Medical Task Force 1, 2011-2017
Member, Concord Plan to End Homelessness Steering Group, 2013-2014
Member, Board of Directors, Concord Coalition to End Homelessness, June

2011-2016 (Secretary 2013-2016)
Member, Greater Concord Task Force Against Racism and Intolerance, 2008-

2016

Treasurer, Capital Area Mutual Aid Fire Compact, January 2009-January 2014
President, Board of Governors, Community Health Centers, Incorporated, Salt

Lake City, Utah, 2006-2008
Secretary, National Fire Protection Association Technical Committee on Single

and Multiple Station Alarms and Household Fire Warning Equipment,
1991-2008

Volunteer Mediator, Third District Juvenile Court, Salt Lake City School District,
Third District Court, Utah Anti-Discrimination Division, 2004-2008

Chair, Salt Lake City Local Emergency Planning Committee, 1999-2008
(member since 1992)

Member, Salt Lake City Metropolitan Medical Response System Steering
Committee, 2003-2008

Board Member, Utah Council for Conflict Resolution, 2005-2007
Chair, Workplace Section, Utah Council on Conflict Resolution, 2005-2007
President, Fire Marshals Association of Utah, 2001
President, Utah Chapter, American Society for Public Administration, 1994

Honors and Awards

Judge Memorial Catholic High School Alumnus Distinguished Service Award,
2001

Granite United Way, Advocate Award, 2017
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Foundation for Healthy Communities
Medication Assisted Services

SFY 2024

Key Personnel

'Name^ ' - . iJobrTille ■Salary Amount Paid
t

.from this.Contract
Dan Andrus Director, Substance Use

Disorder Treatment Project
$85,260
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03J01
603-271-9544 I-600-8S2-334S Ext. 9544

Fix: 603-271-4332 TDDAtceu: 1-500-735-2964 www.dbhs.nb.gov

December 15. 2021

His Excellency, Goyemor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to amend an existing contract with Foundation For Healthy Communities (VC#154533-B001),
Concord, New Hampshire, to increase the ability of hospital systems to address substance use
disorders across ail levels of care for New Hampshire residents experiencing addiction, by
increasing the price limitation by $400,000 from $5,549,000 to $5,949,000 wifri no change to the
contract completion date of June 30, 2023. effective upon Governor and Council approval.
38.07% Federal Funds. 7.73% State General Funds. 54.20% Other Funds (Governor's
Commission).

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on July 13.2016, Item #68.
It was subsequently amended with Govemor and Council approval on March 7, 2018, item #16,
on May 15, 2019 item #17, on June 24, 2020. item #26, and most recently with Governor and
Council approval on June 30,2021, item #17.

Funds are available In the following account for State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023, with
the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between
state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-49-491510-29900000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS
DEPT OF, HNS: DIV FOR BEHAVORIAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SVCS.
CLINICAL SERVICES (80% FEDERAL FUNDS 20% GENERAL FUNDS)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number'^
Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2017 102-500734
Contracts for

Social Svc
49158501

$1,500,000 $0 $1,500,000

2018 102-500734
Contracts for

Social Svc
49158501

$300,000 $0 ■ $300,000

Subtotal $1,800,000 $0 $1,800,000

Tht DtpartmerU 0/Health and Human Semicee'Mtuibn i$ to join communitiee and /omilies
In providing opporlunUieo [or eUiuns to achieve health and independence.
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0&-95-92-920510-33840000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS
DEPT OF. HNS: DIV FOR BEHAVORIAL HEALTH. BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SVCS.
CLINICAL SERVICES (80% FEDERAL FUNDS 20% GENERAL FUNDS)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2018 102-500734
Contracts for
Social Svc

92057501
$500,000 $0 $500,000

2023 074-500585
Community

Grants
92056508

$0 $50,000 $50,000

Sutitotal $500,000 $50,000 $560,000

05-95-92-920510-33820000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS
DEPT OF. HHS: DIV FOR BEHAVORIAL HEALTH. BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SVCS.
GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS (100% Other Funds)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2019 102-500734
Contracts for
Soda] Svc

92058501
$556,000. $0 $556,000

2020 102-500734
Contracts for

Social Svc
92058501

■  $556,000 $0 $556,000

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Program Svc
92058501

$1,056,000 $0 $1,056,000

2022 074-500585
Community

Grants
92058501

$651,893 $0 $651,893

2023 074-500585
Community
Grants

92058501
$404,107 $0 $404,107

Subtotal $3,224,000 $0 $3,224,000

05-95-92-920610-70400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS
DEPT OF, HHS: DIV FOR BEHAVORIAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SVCS,
STATE OPIOID RESPONSE GRANT (100% FEDERAL FUNDS)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/ .

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2022 074-500585
Community

Grants
92057048

$25,000 $0 $25,000

Subtotal $25,000 $0 $25,000
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His Excellency, Governor Chrtetofi^r T. Sununu
and the Honorable Cound)
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05-96-92-920510-19810000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS
DEPT OF, HHS: DIV FOR BEHAVORIAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SVCS.
SABG ADDITIONAL (100% FEDERAL FUNDS)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2023 074-500585
Community
Grants

92055501
$0 $350,000 $350,000

Subtotal $0 $350,000 $350,000

Total $5,549,000 $400,000 $5,949,000

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is continue services to address substance use disorders In
hospitals and hospitals' physician practices through provision of screening, assessment and
treatment including Medication Assisted Treatment in emergency departments, acute care and
outpatient services due to increased demand. Providing support to medical professionals to
recognize and address substance use disorders across the spectrum of hospital services will
increase opportunities for persons with these disorders to initiate and maintain their recovery and
allow for continuity of their treatment. Due 'to the unanticipated stresses on New Hampshire
hospitals over the past year due to the COVID-19 pandemic, this request is to provide the
Contractor with the additional time and funds necessary to sufficiently engage staff throughout
the hospital system statewide.

Approximately 500 Individuals will be served during State Fiscal Year 2022.

The Contractor will continue to recruit, engage and provide training and other technical
support to develop these services within subcontracted hospitals participating in the program, and
monitor their compliance with best practices.

The Department will monitor services by using the following performance measures;

• Minimum of eight (8) hospitals will Increase their capacity to consistently identify
and treat patients with substance use disorders in all parts of the hospital systems.

• Minimum of thirty (30) medical practices will Increase their capacity to provide
Medication Assisted Treatment services.

• Minimum of twelve (12) hospitals will increase their capacity to address substance
use disorders In their emergency departments.

• Minimum of three (3) hospitals will increase their capacity to address substance
use disorders for acute care patients with co-occurring medical conditions.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, the availability of these vital
services vflll be limited, and residents in some areas of the State may not receive appropriate
treatment for their substance use disorders, resulting In heightened risk from overdose, finaricial
and emotional strains on families, and related economic and resource challenges In communities
as affected Individuals continue to struggle vwth their addictions.

Area served: Statewide.
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His ExceDsncy. Governor Christopher T. Sununu.
and the Hor>or8ble CouncU
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Source of Federal Funds; Assistance Listing Number #93.959, FAIN #71083464, and FAIN
#71083509

In the event that the Federal or Other Funds become no longer available. General Funds
will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Shlbinette
Commissioner
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State of New Hampshire

Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #5

This Amendment to the Medication Assisted Services contract is by and between the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human .Services ("State" or "Department") and Foundation For
Healthy Communities ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on July 13. 2016 (Item #6B), as amended on March 7. 2018 (Item #16). as amended on May 15. 2019,
(Item #17). as amended on June 24, 2020 (Item #26). and as amended on June 30, 2021 (Item #17). the
Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the
Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Govemor and Executive Council; and
WHEREAS, the parties agree to increase the price limitation to support continued delivery of these
services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8. Price Limitation, to read:

$5,949,000.

2. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Section 4, Subection 4.1., to
read:

4.1. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as
specified in Exhibit B-1, Budget through Exhibit B-7, Amendment #5 Budget.

. 3. Modify Exhibit B-7, Amendment #4 Budget by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit B-7,
Amendment #5 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

— D3

SS-2017-BDAS-02-MATSE-01-A05 Foundation For Healthy Communities Contractor Initials

A-S-1.0 Page 1 of 3 Date
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This-Amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive
Council approval

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

12/22/2021

Date

-DocuSlgn«d by;

-

trt S-

Name:Katja s. Fox

Title: Di rector

12/22/2021

Date

Foundation For Healthy Communities

-Oo«aS)gn«4bF

Name:^®^®'"
Title: Executive Director

SS-2017-BDAS-02-MATSE-01 -AOS Foundation For Healthy Communities

A-S-1.0 Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviev/ed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

EDMuSigntd by;
Date Name:Ro^y" cuanno

Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: - (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE ̂

Date Name:
Title:

SS-2017-BOAS-02-MATSE-01-A05 Foundalion For Heallhy Communities

A-S-1.0 Page 3 of 3
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Uri A. ShiMoenc

ComoUsstostr

lOitja S. Fos
Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEAL TH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD. NH 03201
603-271-9544 1.8004S2.334S ExL 9344

Fts: 603-27I-4332 TOD Accui: l-SOO-733'2964 www.dbb>.ah.gov

June 2. 2021

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division for Behavioral
Health, to enter into a Sole Source contract with Foundation for Healthy Communities
(VC#154533-B001), Concord, NH, for Substance Use Disorder Treatment services,
including the use of medications, to New Hampshire residents experiencing addiction by
increasing the price limitation by $1,081,000 from $4,468,000 to $5,549,000, extending
the completion date from June 30. 2021 to June 30, 2023, and modifying the scope of
services, effective, upon Governor and Council approval 33.31% Federal Funds. 8.33%
General Funds, 58.36% Other Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on July 13, 2016,
item #6B. It was subsequently amended with Govemor and Council approval on March
7, 2018, Item #16, on May 15. 2019 item #17, and most recently with Governor and
Council approval on June 24, 2020, item #26.

Funds are anticipated to be available in the following accounts for State Fiscal
Years 2022 and 2023, upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the
future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items virithin the price
limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if
needed and justified.

05-95-49-491510-29900000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, HHS: DIV FOR BEHAVORIAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF
DRUG & ALCOHOL SVCS. CLINICAL SERVICES (80% FEDERAL FUNDS 20%
GENERAL FUNDS)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised

Budget

2017
102-

500734

Contracts

for Social

Svc

49158501 $1,500,000 $0 $1,500,000

77ie Dtporimtnl o/Heolih and }luman Servicti' Mitaion is to join cemmunitUs and fomilits
in prouiding opporluniti<» for cilitcna to oOiUvs htalih and indtpendtnce.
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2018
102-

500734

Contracts

for Social

Svc

49158501 $300,000 $0 $300,000

Subtotal $1,800,000 $0 $1,800,000

92.920510-33840000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN

SVCS DEPT OF, HHS; DIV FOR BEHAVORIAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUQ &
ALCOHOL SVCS, CLINICAL SERVICES (80% FEDERAL FUNDS 20% GENERAL
FUNDS)

State

Fiscal

Year

. Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Numt>er

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised

Budget

2018
102-

500734

Contracts

for Social

Svc

92057501 $500,000 $0 $500,000

SubfotffJ $500,000 $0 $500,000

OS.95-92-920510'33820000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND

HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, HHS: DIV FOR BEHAVORIAL HEALTH. BUREAU OF

DRUG & ALCOHOL SVCS, GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS (100% Other Funds)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account

'  Class

Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised

Budget

2019
102-

500734

Contracts

for Social

Svc

92058501 $556,000 $0 $556,000

2020
102-

500734

Contracts

for Social

Svc

92058501 $556,000 $0 $556,000

2021
102-

500731

Contracts

for

Program

Svc

92058501 $1,056,000 $0 $1,056,000

2022
102-

500731

Contracts

for

Program

Svc

92058501 $0 $651,693 $651,893
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2023
102-

500731

Contracts

for

Program

Svc

92058501 $0 $404,107 $404,107

Subtotal $1168,000 $1,056,000 $3,224,000

05-95-92-920510-70400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF. HNS: D1V FOR BEHAVORIAL HEALTH. BUREAU OF
DRUG & ALCOHOL SVCS, STATE OPIOID RESPONSE GRANT (100% FEDERAL
FUNDS)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised

Budget

2022
102-

500731

Contracts

for

Program

Svc

92057048 $0 $25,000 $26,000

Subtotal $0 $25,000 $25,000

.

TOTAL $4,468,000 $1,081,000 $5,549,000

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the Department is seeking to extend the
contract beyond the completion date and there are no renewal options available. The
Contractor was originally selected through a non-competitive process because of its
established professional relationships with hospitals in New Hampshire which allowed it
to be uniquely positioned to provide the required services. Because of those relationships,
the Contractor has demonstrated the ability to implement new programs, and oversee
ongoing programs in conjunction with hospitals and physician practices statewide.

The purpose of this request is to continue sen/ices to address substance use
disorders in hospitals and hospitals' physician practices through Medication Assisted
Treatment in Emergency Departments, acute, care and outpatient services. Providing
support to medical professionals to recognize and address substance use disorders
across the spectrum of hospital services will Increase opportunities for persons with these
disorders to initiate and maintain their recovery and allow for continuity of their treatment.

It is anticipated that approximately 500 individuals will receive services supported
by this program from July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2023.

The Contractor will continue to recruit, engage and provide training and other
technical support to develop these services within subcontracted hospitals participating
in the program, and monitor their compliance with best practices.
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The Department will monitor contracted services using the following performance
measures:

• Minimum of eight (8) hospitals increasing their capacity to consistently
identify and treat patients with Substance Use Disorders (SUDs) in all parts
of the hospital systems.

• Minimum of thirty (30) medical practices increasing their capacity to provide
Medication Assisted Treatment services.

• Minimum of twelve (12) hospitals increasing their capacity to address
substance use disorders in their Emergency Departments.

• Minimum of three (3) hospitals increasing their capacity to address
substance use disorders for acute care patients with co-occurring medical
conditions.

Should the^ Governor and Council not authorize this request, the availability of
these vital services will be limited, and residents in some areas of the State may not
receive appropriate treatment for their substance use disorders, resulting in heightened
risk from overdose, financial and emotional strains on families, and related economic and
resource challenges in communities as affected individuals continue to struggle with their
addictions.

Area senred; Statewide.

Source of Funds: CFDA #93.768. FAIN # TI083326.

In the event that the Federal or Other Funds become no longer available, General
Funds will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Shibinette
Commissioner
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State of New Hampshire

Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #4

This Amendment to the Medication Assisted Services contract is by and between the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and Foundation for
Healthy Communities ("the ContractoO-

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contracf) approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on July 13, 2016, (Item #6B), as amended-on March 7. 2018, (Item #16), May 15, 2019, (Item #17). and
June 24. 2020 (Item #26), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, and
modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30. 2023.

2. Form P-37. General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$5,549,000.

3. Modify Exhibit A. Scope of Services Amendment #2 by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit A
Amendment #4. Scope of Services, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

4. Add Exhibit B-6 Amendment #4. Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

5. Add Exhibit 6-7 Amendment #4. Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

rat
Vitial3 \SS-2017-BDAS-02-MATSE-A04 Foundation for Healthy Communities Contractor Initials

A.S-1.0 Page 1013 Dale'ii^^
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below, -

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Sen/ices

6/2/2021

Date

—OocuSlon*4 by:

FOX

Title: Director

6/1/2021

Date

Foundation for Healthy Communities

• Do«uSlg'>M By;

Ames

Title: Executive Director

SS-2017-8DAS-02-MATSE-01-A03

A-S-1.0

Foundalion for Healthy Communities

Page 2 of 3

Contractor Initials

Date 6/1/2021
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

-OoeuSlgnad by;

6/2/2021

Date Pinos
Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

litialaSS-2017-BDAS-02-MATSE-01-A03 Foundation for Healthy Communities Contractor InitiaU

A-S-1.0 - Page 3 of 3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Medication Assisted ServlcesExhIbIt A

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance
services they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the
contract effective date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an Impact
on the Services described herein, the Department has the right to modify
Service priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to
achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. For the purposes of this Agreement, the Department has identified the
Contractor as a Subreclpient, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.0. et seq.

2. Scope of Services

' 2.1.. The Contractor shall recruit hospitals that are willing to increase their capacity
to consistently identify and treat patients with Substance Use Disorders (SUDs)
in all parts of the hospital systems, inclusive of Emergency Departments, acute
care units and networked outpatient medical practices.

2.2. The Contractor shall contract with a minimum of eight (8) hospitals to increase
and enhance-their capacity to identify and address SUDs in theirpatients at all
points of contact within their system.

2.3. The Contractor shall ensure that subcontracted hospitals shall assign a staff
member to coordinate the practice changes required in.this project.

2.4. The Contractor shall ensure that subcontracted hospitals establish a team to
plan and implement necessary changes to enhance care for patients with SUDs.
This team shall include but not be limited to staff representing hospital
administration, emergency services, acute care units and networked outpatient
medical practices.

2.5. The Contractor shall ensure hospital personnel develop work plans to enhance
their ability to Identify and address SUDs in their patients in all parts of the
hospital systems. Work plans must include, but are not limited to:

2.5.1. Providing screening, treatment and referral to specialty SUD treatment.

2.5.2. Integration of medical and behavioral health treatment.

2.5.3. Providing patient access to recovery supports.

2.5.4. Staff competency in Trauma-Informed Care.

2.5.5. Increased patient and family engagement in service planning and care.

2.5.6. Reduction in stigma and discrimination for patients with SUD.
Foundation (or Healthy Communitiea, Inc. Exhibit A-Amendmenl 02 Contractor Iniliata
SS-2017-BDAS

Rev.09/06/18

iab^ '
SS-2017-BDAS-02-MATSE

Pago 1 of 4 Dflta^^ l/cwcx



DocuSign Envelope ID; A693D6D1-95D4-4E2F.B6C8-C0DEF2317DD5

DocuSign Envelope 10: 4063BE80-9D37-4A1F.80C4-3AC2B0708520

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Medication Assisted ServlcesExhlblt A

2.5.7. Increased recovery orientalion.

2.5.8. Active focus on equity for vulnerable populations, including but not
limited to:

2.5.8.1. Black, indigenous, and people of color.

2.5.8.2. People who identify as LGBTQ+.

2.6. The Contractor shall monitor implementation of work plans to ensure hospitals
are achieving progress as described In Subsection 2.5, above.

2.7. The Contractor shall ensure the availability of initial and on-going training and
resources to staff in subcontracted hospitals to include technical assistance and
leadership for a Community of Practice, a group with the goal of gaining
knowledge through the process of sharing information and experiences related
to addiction care in hospital systems.

2.8. The Contractor shall ensure that subcontracted hospitals develop a process to
assess consistent identification and care for patients with SUDs across all
provider practices in the hospital system, inclusive of emergency services, acute
care units and networked outpatient medical practices. .

2.9. The Contractor shall participate in monthly compliance meetings with the
Department.

3. Reporting

3.1. The Contractor shall submit copies of subcontracts with prospective hospitals,
subject to the Department for approval.

3.2. The Contractor shall provide quarterly status reports that must include, but are
not limited to:

3.2.1. A list of subcontracted hospitals;,

3.2.2. A description of progress made in subcontracted hospitals including,
but not limited to:

3.2.2.1. Establishment of a Project Coordinator and Implementation'
Team;

3.2.2.2. Implementation of aspects of work plans defined in Subsection
2.5, above.

3.2.2.3. Assessment of consistency of SUD care across the hospital
system;

3.2.3. Training and technical assistance provided by the Contractor;

,  3.2.4. Barriers to implementation; and

3.2.5. Other progress to date.

[fh
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3.3. The Contractor must submit a final report to the Department within forty-five (45)
days of conclusion of the contract that includes, but is not limited to:

3.3.1. List of subcontracted hospitals:

3.3.2. Summary of progress made in subcontracted hospitals including, but
not limited to:

3.3.2.1. Implementation of work plan areas defined In Subsection 2.5;

3.3.2.2. Assessment of consistency of SUD care across the hospital
system;

3.3.2.3; Training and TA provided by the Contractor;

3.3.2.4. Other progress to date;

3.3.2.5. Barriers.to implementation; and

3.3.2.6. Recommendations for future development.

3.4. The Contractor shall prepare and submit ad hoc data reports, respond to
periodic surveys, and other data collection requests as deemed necessary by
the Department and/or Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services
Administration (SAMHSA).

4. Performance Measures

4.1. The Department will measure the Contractor's performance by monitoring the
following performance measures:

4.1.1. No less than of eight (8) hospitals working with the Contractor to
increase their capacity to consistently Identify and treat patients with
Substance Use Disorders (SUDs) in all parts of the hospital systems.

4.1.2. Type and quantity of training and technical assistance provided to all
sub-contracted hospitals.

4.1.3. The Contractor's effectiveness at implementing and adhering to a
.  continuous quality improvement process in a minimum of four (4)

hospitals.

4.1.4. The Contractor's ability to improve staff confidence and competence in
discussing SUDs with patients across multiple units of the hospital
system.

4.2. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department to enhance contract
management. Improve results and adjust program delivery and policy based on
successful outcomes.

Foundalion for Healthy Communities. Inc Exhibit A - Amendment «2 Conlrador Initiab
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5. State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standards
5.1. SOR funds will be used solely for purposes of providing training and technical

assistance to support hospital efforts to enhance their capacity to identify and
address SUDs in their patients at all points of contact within their system.

5.2. The Contractor shall provide the Department with a budget narrative within thirty
(30) days of the contract effective date.

5.3. The Contractor shall meet with the Department within sixty (60) days of the
contract effective date to review contract implementation.

5.4. The Contractor shall provide the Department with timelines and implementation
plans associated with SOR funded activities to ensure services are in place
within thirty (30) days of the contract effective date.

5.5. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department to understand and comply
with all appropriate Department. State of New Hampshire. Substance Abuse
and Mental Health Services Administration SAMHSA, and other Federal terms,
conditions, and requirement.

5.6. The Contractor shall attest that SOR grant funds may not be. used, directly or
indirectly, to purchase, prescribe, or provide marijuana or treatment using
marijuana. The Contractor agrees that;

5.6.1. Treatment in.this context Includes the treatment of opioid use disorder
(OUD);

5.6.2. Grant funds also cannot be provided to any individual who or
organization that provides or permits marijuana use for the purposes of
treating substance use or mental disorders;

5.6.3. The marijuana restriction in Paragraph 5.6.2 above applies to all
subcontracts and memorandums of understanding (MOD) that receive
SOR funding;

5.6.4. Attestations will be provided to the Contractor by the Department; and

5.6.5. The Contractor shall complete and submit all attestations to the
Department within thirty (30) days of contract approval.

5.7. The Contractor shall refer to Exhibit B. Methods and Conditions Precedent to
Payment for grant terms and conditions including, but not limited to:

5.7.1. Invoicing;

5.7.2. Funding restrictions; and

5.7.3. Billing.

Foundation for Healthy Communities, Inc. Exhit)il A - Amendment tf2 Contractor Initia
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I STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH ATW HI)MAN SERVICES

!>msW^for BEHAVIORAl HEALTH.

IWTLEASANTSTREET.CONCORD.MH 03301 . „
j603.27l.9544 M00.fl524345Eit.9544

Fei: 603^271^32 TDD A«<eM::1406..735r2964 w^.dhbi-ph.goV
!  ■ -

ju'he2.2020

His-Ex^Vloncy^Goyernqf-Chrlstopher T. Sunuriu
.find the.Hohoreble CcuncI)

.State" Houoe
Concord. Nevy Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED AC-nON

•Authorize the Departmerit ol-.Health and Human Se.rviceB, Dhnston for Be.hayioral Health.,
to amend an (Bxisling Sole Soured;"; contract with. Foundation for Healthy CommunHip.s
•(VC#154533-Bb01); 4,25 Airport Road. Gphcord. NH'for the expansion" of the Stale's.capacHy to..
provlde'Substancfe .Use" bis.o.rd.er Treatinrje.nt"including the use of medications to Neyi/.Harh'pshire
residents experiencing addiction, by increasing the price llmltatbn .by $1.0^.000 from $3,.412 .000
to $4 46eiQbO' 8nd by extending the cdrripielion date from June 30.2020 to June 30.2021 effective
ubon'Obyerridr'and Council 'approval, ilhe original contract was, approv.ed by Gpyemor and
•Council oh Juiy 13^ 20i6i item and.most recently amended with Gpvembr and Council
■approval .on May 15. 2019, item »17. l6b% Other Funds (Governor'? Cbmmissioh Funds).

Funds ere ayailablo.iathe following account for S.tate FisiCa! via'ar 2p2;l. the au.ihpriiy
"Ib adjust budget line ite"nis'w[thinihe;R^^ limitation and encumbrance's between state fiscal yea/;?
■ihrough 'the Budget Office,."if ri.epded antJ judtifi^^^

05,95Hl9i49lSI0-299O health And SOCUt SERVICES, HEALTH ANfe HUMANjiVCSDEP^
PF, :HHS: DIV of COMM based, C'ARE SVCi BU^AU OF, DRUG & ALCOHOL SVCS,

SFY- ■
'.Ciafis/.
Account ClassTltlfi

Current
f^dlfled
Budget

Incroased
(Decrpasfid) •

Amount

Revised
Modlflod, :
Budget ..

2017 102-
500734

Cbntr'scts for Social SeryicM ■  "$1.5pp.p00 ^$0 $1;500.000

20.18 102-
500734

■Cbntra'cls lor Social Services ■  $.300,000

/

.$0 $300,000

Suiy7ot6\
1

;f7,8pmO 10 $11,800,000

0S-95-92-92OG1O-33^bb0 H^LfH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUttAN
SVGS DEPT OF, HHS: DIV FOR BEHAVIOMl BIJREA.U OF DRUG & ALCOHOL

Spy- ClBBpj.
Account

ClaM Title

Current
M.pdl.ned
Budget

Increased.
(Decro.ased)

Amount '

Revleed
Modified
Budget

.2018" 102-. ■
-:509734 .

iConlracts fbrSbcij 1 Seryic'e.s ,$500.00,0, '

•$500,000

SubsTofr 1 ^  .;$5p0.0.00 $0 fWO.OOO
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His Exoeljsncy, jC^vernor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council '
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05;^92^92051(^33S20000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERV1CES» HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS
DEPT OF, HHS: DIV FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF.DRUC & ALCOHOL SVCSi

SPY
:Clase/

.Account
Class Title

Current

Modified

Budget

Increased
(Decreased) ■
Amount

Revised
Modified

Budget

2019 102-

500734

Coritra'ct.s'for Socle!
.Se'rvices .$556,000 ip-.. ■$556,000

2020 102-
■ S00734

Contracts.for Social
Services •$558.b0b $.0 '$558;000

2021 t02^
500734

Contracts for Social
■  Services ■  'JO S1,d56M0 $i,056;0P.0-

Sub-Totat $1,112,000 $1,056,000 $2,168,000
^Cpntract Total |3;412,000 -$1,056,000. $4,468,000

EXPLANATION

This -request is 'Sole Source, because -the Veh'dor is iiriiquely qualified to prpyicie. the
treatment services needed to address the, op.ioid'crisis. This vendor was selected bemuse of Its
established prdfesslbnal reiatibriships :with ail hospitals in New Hampshire' and itS; proven ability
to .woH(- effectively' wHh Nevv Ha'mp'shire hospitals and physician practices to. implement .ri'ew
programs. .As" prd'yiously'statedi the, original .contract was[ap'prbv.ed by Govembr ar^d Council bn
July T3,.2G1"6,. liem'^.B! .[t.vyas then aub^quently amended Gpyerribr'and Gouricil appFpval
bn'March -7, 20,18, Item^tflSi.and on May 15, 2019, Item #17r

The pu^.se.d.f this request is to. increase the State's capacity to addre^ substance [use
disorders in'hospitals 'arid their networked physician practlce's by iriitiating .the: provision .of ne.w
seWbes, including Medication Assisted Treatment, in Emergency Pjepartments, acute .care and
outpatient service's. CDevelbping the cajMcity of medical prbfessio.naie.to' recognize-and .address
siibstartM, use disorders across the-.sp'^aim of hospitarsSrvices will increase qppo.rfunltie.s for"
pSfsbri's'with these disorders to Initiate.and:maintain their recovery and allow for poritinuity'pf their
tf.e.aj.merit.

New Hampshire .icOhtihu'es to have a significant nurnt^r of hdlyiduals in nae'd.pf services
to address their misuse .o.f..bpi,6,l,d8'. The .Stele .cp.ntihue's.tb'wortt'.wHh; lhe'sUbsta''rice" use treatment
system to.deveipp arid expahd re'sources. It Is anticipated that a'pproximateiy 50.0. ir^dividuais wil
receive services supported by This program from.July 1,2020, through J.une 30.2021,. The overall
Investment Th" the prejed' will de'velbp ^systems to. sustain 'capa,city in th'e future and support .the
dbvelopment of'hew progirams.tb.b.uild Ibrig-term'capacity.

'The-ye.ndo.r .vy}!! recruit;, engage .and pr^yicte training -and other, technical support'to
"develdp.thWe-services'wllhin'.'subc^ hdspTtals participating .ln..lhe. program, and .mpriiipr
th'eircbmplia'rice with best pra^^^

The. Department will mbriitbr .contracted services' iiSihg the' following pertorman'be
'rhe'a'su'res:

?  ('30).medical practlcesincreaslng,.capaclty to p:fctvidB..Meaicali6h-
•Assisi^'T^re.a'tmenl seryicie.s',;
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* Minifhum of. twelve (12) hospitals increasing their capacity to i^dress s.ubstance
use disorders in their Emergency Departments.

' • Minimum of.three(3).hpspiiatslnqreds.ing their capacity to address substance use
disorders for acute care patients ̂ th co-o.ccurring medical.conditions.

As referenced in Exhibit.'C-1, Revisions to General Provisions. Paragfaph'3 of the oHgirial
cdntrect. the parties have the;optlpn tp ;ext6nd.lhe agreernent for up to three (3) a^itlorial yea/s,
cdntirigerit upon eatj'fifaCtdry'deiiy.ejry of-services,.available fundlr^g, agreement of the parties and
Governor and Council approval. fhe Oep'artriient.ts'exercising Its option to'renew's'ervices'for.One
(1) of the one (1) years ay^lable.

Should the Goyernpr end 'Council;np1 authbrue this request, the availability of these vital
services, will to. limited, end [residents in sorne areas pf the State may riot receive appropriate
treatment for their' substance .use disorders, resulting in ;a heightened risk rom oyerdpse, •financial
and em.otipnal stmins on families, and related'economic arid resource chalieriges in corhmunities.
as aff.e.d^ iridividua.ts continue to struggle with the.lr addictioris;

Area served:'Statewide

Spura; of .Funds: .10.6% Other funds. frprTi Governor's Commission

ictfuily subpit

.on A.jShiblnette
Commissioner'

The Wpo/;^ml.6/;^<b/<h ohS Human^ryrn'Miuioh iilajain wnwtuhUia'a'nd/omitia'
in prouidiitg opporiuniliei forcUiam lo achieiK heotih.and independtnct.
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New HampflWPB Department of Heattti and Human Serytcpa
Mad^tlpii Asatsted Servlcoa - ^

State of New Hampahlro r,.
Depar^nt oif Hoa?ih end Human:8eryice» ■

Arnomlnient«to tho.Modteallon Aeeteted Sorvtepo Contract

Conoord..NB 03301. ' l ~

-^ntractaaamwWod and h'fcon^eretlpn pt;oeftBb sums ̂

•WHEREAS Dumiant to Foim P4r. .General Provtstons. -Paragraph 18 and
General Prtvisiohe.. ParBgreph 3. Coritnict "may be. amended .upon written agreenwnt of the ̂parties
arid "epproyal from d*oGovernor end

WHEREAS tho-partJesegrae to exterrflhetermoftheagmementlncrea or modifytt̂ e ̂ pe of senrtces to support condn^ delivery of these ser^

NOW THEREFORE, In oonskloreiioh.of ihe foregoing ̂  the cove^end conditlon3.coritslned
In'the 'Corrtrsd arid.Mt forth-heroln. the p.artlea her«p agree.toamend BO.foltowe.

i. Fprm P-sTGefwretPro^slons/'Block 1.7. Gornplolton Date, to.reed:
Ji^:'30.-202i.

.2, F.oiTn"P-37,.Geri^.l f^wslbne, Btock 1.0. Price Limitation, to riaad.
j4.40e;oa)'.

•  3, -AadEihlb# RsjMlwiiarts.SubjeeHon-iM.tejlwa^
4.1. InpetlaritServices-

. 4-11 ■Th«e«.trac<orBhairrecmlthospltal8«llinaWlncf»,a»^^is'U^ of pati'onts being trectod (or Other med.tael wndrtkifts In
'SeMosa..' '

-4 12 The Contrector ahaD contract Swith a minimum of th.ree. (jj^enti^jhc^ltab'to^
'  ' Increase mdlr ability to Idteriltfy and 1

4 1..3 ThB&Aador8han;«ork \^:h«5ptoLpen»nne!^fo d^"  addroMirig SUDs In Iripatiertl servtoes. -WcrK plara ohall tnc(udo..bu1.npt bej.lmlted
to:

4.1.11. WmmWinBemhlmumo4on8(1)«tW.inem^^^
'BC^ylties;

:4.-.l .3.2- TrBlriing ho^tW otaff in.basic undorateriidthg of oddjc^; recoyory...hafni
raducUbri:aria. ire8.p.ur6es;

■4;i.3.3". Eeta^lishinoproiooblB arid wo*^rkfI6w8f0.r"Wto®8;WhWi^o^ Indude.; biit;
b.l.a.S.'i; Idenltf^hg.flrid ewluatirig patients.wlth.
.4:-l.3.3-.2. liitotivallng patients to 'oWmovirtedgo -end ad.dress their :SODe. tf^gh.

o^dVe.bWalorei communication;

,Foirid,»tk>fw'ferHe#Rfiy'C^^ Ari>wCi^"« ■r-.'/g-ZO
eS^ITrBDA^J^T'SE^il^ Pft8«1oi.6 '
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Medlcatlon.A&alstoid Servlcee

•4J;3.3XProvWing harm feductfonaervlpea:

4.1.3.3.3. ProyUlng or refefTing patfefrte to betuwtarel health oounseHng and peer
recovery support for SUD;

4.1.-3.3.4. mWating medical treBtmerd for SUD. Incfudihg MAT whan Indicated,
arrd

4.1.3.3.5. Dtechatgo plennfho retonota for continuing SUD tfBstnwnt arid,
recovery auppoft

4.1.3.4. liilUaltng tMjmpternenlEfttoh of eehrtcw

4.1.:4. The Contrectbf-8haO monitor Implerhenteton 6t the worKpianato.ermim.bospteMiere echiovlng ̂ ogress as lleted In. Paragraphf.1.3.

'  41 6 The Cpritractbf shall dlibursa funde to'.hospitals to dp^onallre wortt plans.Funds may be uaod for.purposes Indudirifl.. but not limited to.

4.1.6.1. Paying for the cpordhator'B .eenhoe;
.4.1.5.2. Tralnlrtg;'

. '4-.1.5.3. ModmcfltiOfTOto.thocloc*ronk:hoaW recprd(EHR)8y"8tDm;anf .
4.1.5:4. Staff or prowsaw Idorrtified in wortt plan'wlth oppmyal pftte Department.

■4.1.0. The iCbntractof 'ehaU ensure the availability of Inlllal iand ongoing traWng endtechnical esisista nee to staff In hospliala..,
4:1.7, The tbritraetor «h.all .p.royW# hospltab w«h 6p«onS,-.«f maiipbte funds forsustateeblWy of sevioea outlined Iri Subaedlqn 4,1.

4 -2. Wmpiiartce and B'eporting Riequlrempnta
4.2:1 Ttxe Cdntractpr/ehali sutjniH a llst.of hospttala.fbr biibconlrectir^. subject toDeparting ef^rrovei.

-  4.I2. The Contredbf.shall piovkte quarterty atatus reports to pte Depai^nl thit shall
•  Include, but rwt be llrnited lb:

4.2.2.1. Designated cdordinatoreforeach hospital; -
4.2.2Z. Trelnlng'provldBd fn basic undBrstending-ol addiction, rewvery, Iterm,

reducUqh.and reaourcos;
4.2.2:1 Protocols established arid Impl.omenled;

' 4.2.2.4: Trelnteg and technical es^na riepdad by hbspltai.perspnnel; end
4:2.2.6. OtKof-proflri^ IniabdressingiSUDs in inpa^

^  4.2.3. Thecontrerto^shaii.aubrnaefl^^^da^ o1.concluslon:d the opntrect that-shan include, birt Is rtot,lDTi!tod to.
4,2.3:1. Designated .doprdinator* for each hospttal.'
f.l'iz.'trijirii^' prbvlded to;hospiW personnel In a baste understar^^lng of;

4.2.3.2;i.iAddWion;

• 4.2.3.2.2. Recover

4:2,3.2.3. Harm redx^n;' and

FOunOetto«;f«H^!myCai^^ Anw.tSTWtW cbrvlmctor n^.
S&2017:aDAS:02:MATa-d.1-AM Pw2.bf5
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New Hampshire Department of HMlth and Human Services
MedlcatlPn Assisted Serirjces

4.2.3.2.4. SUD.'reppvefy and treabnent" resources;

4.2.-3.3. Protocols established and irnplemented M.dascrlb.ed In 4:1 .-3.3.;
4.Z3.4. Number of servioes provided foracute cere, patients wrttfi oo-dccunlrig

SUDs; end v,

4.2.3.4. Totei riumb« of ocuto care patients benefittind from this program and
further deiineated by:

■4.2.3:4.1, f^mber of patients with identiftod SUDs.
:4.2.3.4.2. Number of patients who rec^ved aervibes provided by this

program.

4.3. PcrfprmaiKe Measures
4;3.1. The Contractor shall prdvWo. a batollne oJ me fpllowlng metrics laltw at the .onset

ofthlst^ntract: .
■4.3.-i .-1: The huinbGf.of acute care pslientB.wlth SU^ receiving the.fbltovring

seiyjoes while^hospitsltzed:,
4:3:i..t.i. Heim reduction;
.4.3!i'.1 5. sup Counaeiing;
'4.1'1.V3. SUD medical .tireatmenti'^

• 4.3.1.1:4.6UD recovery support senrtoes.
:4.3.'1. The CoWractor shell provido to the Department ite.folIowihiB

rneasuree:

'  4.3;i;i..Aminlmumdthree(3)hcspltstelncreaBlng"thfilrrap^ ■
"  'sypVih merr inpatlent'Serricfea;

4.il.2. A'mlnirnurh of.th.reo (3) hospitals ImptemOTting Imprev^ protocols In^thelr
Inpalterrleeiylqes;-

4.3".t;3. An increased n'uiTto'or of eoulfl car;o pfltic^ with SUDs rooeMrfl the
services listed In .SybparBgraph 4.3.1.1.; and

4.3.1.4. An Increased number ofj.adute.care'patlenta with,SU^ provided
'  refeneta to cervices tp-^di^ thsfr SUDspodl hospital discharge'.

4. ,Mod,ify:E)tfdbH B. Methods arid Condttlons Pre<^enl (o PoyrTi.ent. Se.clfcn 2.. and detete ln to,
'entinrty and replaoewhh:-
This Agrooment ta-funded wth,gdnorB.l. fedw) en6;Oepar^nt ecoees losupporttng ftjnding forthts.prtijocl te depet^epl uport
set forth" in^thd Catalog" bf Pederal pbrhe8tlc;Aaal.stanpeDepartment-of Health, and Hurnan Services;. Sub^nce^^uM and. Mental ^

•Ad rhlnlsiretlon;- Block, Orarite.for Pfe,yent«n arvd TreaVnent of Subster^co,Abuse. Substarwe.Ab.ysa
Bio^ Grert (^B.O) a'rid.pil^r Fu.nds from'lhe.Govemor.Cdihm.lssio Furids,.,

V. ./Md'Exhibll BrS. Budget -Amend^tiO. bcorporated by reference ond.attached herein.

F.oundattora'for'HontthyCommupl^ Conl^w lnW4f».
.5M0t7^^-MATStO1.-A03 ' Poip.3pj'5 ^
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AH mftHMons ot'the Contract and prtdr ohendmeflta not tncorwWent with this Amarrtmen^
efloctoo tho.date otOov«rt« end ExeeeBv

Coiincll.Bppfpyal.

IN witness whereof,.the pa^ have aet their hanrte.ee of the'dato wrttton bolow.
State of New Hampshire
bopertrnom olHeaRh o/xJ Humop.Sorytcoo

Date

pate

Name;

TtUe: Doaotor
Mfl -(i^

Foundattona for Hwlthy Cditimunttifefl

THie;

; FoundeOona for Kea®V CoJTvmffWo^

.SS;a017^0ASr<l2:MAt.BE-®t'A??

* M)Cn«mont'ib

P«9«4o(9
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.Ttie pf^ln'g Amwdmcfrt. having been ttf Ws office, re appfDvod w.tp form. siAstenoe. find
exeortibn.

OFFlCe OF THE attorney GENErtAL

0/5/20 Catherine Pinos
Date Name:

THja: Catherine Pinqs. Atlomey

I hereby certify thai:the foregobig Atrrehdmont ww apprpywJ by the ^
the Slate of Now HOTpcht.re at the Meeting oh:- o' meaBng)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATC

Date ■
Title:-

FoondeflonJ Iw Anwndftwni pi.
S^jtblY^BOAS^-MATSE-pl-AM PogbaofS
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Exhibit &-6. Gixtgat • if^endtmeni.'S)

Ntfw.HAmpsMf© Oopxtment of.Heanh and Human Servlcet

BUa*r K*in»': PoundaUpn toi' HailtAy CammuntBM

ButfgatfOR HAT Htaiu^jCommuniMi

Bvdoil P«rM: 7/1120 •

-'.i -i -OlrocH'^.JtV^I •*» »•y'TifMWet,7;:r^i r'.'-

ft

1

W

r-VolalSoli^/^ I 109.000.00 9 15.000.00 1 121.900.00

2. EmDiOT«e bonarts t 37.900.00 i 9.929.00. s :43.123.00

3: Centultftnu i 4.000.00 s .900.00 s 4.900.00

4. Eoutemtnt:

R«M9l

Reoofr and Mttntartnoe
. PinchMe/OepncisOon

S. SvpoUot:
Educadonal

Lab . .

kiodl^
ono*' s  - 403PO % 90^ s 402.30

B. Tuvol > 4.900.00 % 720.00 $ 9.920.00

7. .Occupancy s 3.120.00 3 499.00 s 3.999.00

B. Currant Ezooftoaa.
Tolaphona s ^.402.00 1 90.30 1 492.30

Pbtlxoe 3 3M.6o 9 43.W < 343.00

'  SuMdotioni ■

AuOnend ueoai 1 0.300.00 % .  1-.245.00 s . 0.949.00

Inouranca

H

1

9. Scttyro/a

10. MoAetim/CommunleaOons
II. StaffEducsUontndTraMno % 2.000.00 :S.- .300.00 9 2.300.00

12. •SubcormeD/Aottomanti S 990.090.39 .  . .
%■■ 990.090.39

1 300P0 > 49.00 9 ••• .. 345.00

'Pclntlna t i.»3e.oo •1 24a.26 9- 1.990.35

.  'ComoularOutpulCxperuas i -1.032.00 9 -  - 244.90 t 1.079.90

-TOTAL - • ' • •i.-. -  1.0)0.441J» t ■ . 29.999.99 t 1.039.000.00

PnndiSan'tot HMbrr CenrnunMi*

6S-30W.-eOAi424MUE-«l>AU
P«0« i «1 '

EjMM ©4. Dudpei •Amsniimfnt N

.ConO«ete< InCtaU
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itfTaj-A.-Mtycn
Commiuloatr

Kalja S
Dirtfiaf

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DimiON FOR BEHAVtORAL HEALTH

I29PLEASANTSTREE1,C0.NC0RD..VH OJJOi
60M7(.9^ 14004530343 Exl 9M4

Fas; 603O7l<4331 -TDD Access: lOOO*735-2964 «r«rw.dht)i.nb.tov

-Apr/! 16.-20.19

' His Excellency, Governor Christopher T.. Sununu
end the Honorable Council

istale Ho^se
Concord. New Hampshire 03301 ' •

REQUESTED.ACHON

Authorize the Oepartme'nl of Health.and Human Services. Division for Behavioral Health,
to exercise a renewal option and amend an existing sole source agreement with Foundation for
Healthy .Gonimunities (Veridpr #154533-8001). li25 Airport Road, Concord. NH 03301,- for the
purpose of expanding th.e Stale's capacity to provide Opiate. Treatment including the. use .of
medicatidhs.to. New Hampshire residents Experiencing opiotd. addiction, by increasing the price
limitation by $556,000 frorh $2i856.000 to an ambunt.hpi to exceed $3.412,000. .and exleriding
the .conhplelion dale-from June 30. 2019 to June 30, 2020,. effective up.on Qoverobr and
Executive, ;Council approyaj. The ■additional funding :is 100% "Qlher F.unds. (Governor's
.Commission Funds)-;

This ag'reemeht was .originally approved by.the 'Govemor.arid Executive Council on July-
13. 20,1.6 (ltern#6B) and siibseqijenliy artiendmeht.oh March 7, 2018 {llerh#16}.

Funds are anticipated to be available in the following accounts for State. F.iscaj Years
202.0, upon.the-avaiiability .ari.d-coritinued'abpropriatjon pf.fund.s imtlie futureope.ra.tin9-budt9e.ts.-,
bS-95-49A9i510.299b HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS
DEPT OF,- HRS: D'lV OF COMM BASED CARE SVC, BUREAU QF DRUG & ALGQHQL
SVCS. Clinical .SERVICES (86% Federal, 20% General Funds)

SPY
Class/

Acco.unt Class. Title
Current >

'  MpdIfiGd.
- iBu'dget

Increased
(Decreased) .

Amount.

Revised
Modified -
B.udget

■2017 1p.2-.500734 Contra'cts for Social Services $i:5po,ppo ■  .$p $1.500.0.00

. 2018 1,02-500734 Cbnlracts for Social Services $ 300;000 ■ ■$0 .$. ■300,000

„

Sub-Total $1:800,000 . -SO V,800,000
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and ̂ e.Honorable Council

Page 2 of4

05-95-92-920510-3:^640000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVCS DEPT OF, HHS: DIV FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU 0^ DRUG & ALCOHOL
iSVCS, CLINICAL SERVICES (80% Federal, 20% General Funds)

SFY
Class/

Account.
Class Title.

Currerit .

Modified
Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount.

.Revised
Modified
Budget

2018 102-500734 Contracts f.or Social Services $ 500,000 ■SO- $ 500,000"

Sub-Total $500,000 .$0- ' $500,000

05-95-J
SVCS 1
SVCS,

I2-920510-33820000 HEALTH AND SQCIA
DEPT OF, HHS: piV FOR BEHAVIORAL H
bpvernp'r Cprnmission'Funds (100% Othi

L SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN
EALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL
3r Funds)

SFY
Class/

Account
Class Title

Currerit
Modified
Budget .

Increased
(Decreased)

Amo.unt

.Revised
MPdified
■Budget

20.19 102-500734 .Contracts for SPcial Services ■  :$556,000 .. 50. .$556,000

2P20 102^500734 Contracts for Social Sen/ices ■  ■ ■ $0 $556,000 $556,000
Sub-Totat $556,000 1556,000 $1,112,000

Coritract'Total ».B56,QQ0: $556,000 • $3,412,000

Explanation ■

the. original agreement was sole source due to the quickly .escalating opidid crisis and
ihe need to develop treatment services; within the medical cpmrpunlly. !i.n addition, the'
Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Olher Drugs recently approved its Stale Fiscal Yeari
2b2d;spending plan, which indudes continuing'the funding for this initiative through .this contract!
This vendor was^seiected because of its established professional relationships with all hospital^
in New Hampshire and its proven ability to work effectively vtriih New Hampshire hospitals and
physician practices to implement-new programs. The agreement with Foundation .fpr fiiealth)
Cpmmunitjes was approved to achieve two objeptives;

1) Expand Med.icati.ori. A.ssJsted Treatrnent, ih physician practice,s by increasirig the,
riumbef of hospital-networked physician practices that provide Medic'atioh Assisted
Treatment" and, |

!2) increase the State's-capacity to .address substance use disorder in hospital
Emergency pepartmehts (EDs) by recruiting and cpniracbng with hospitals to developthis capaci^ and to initiate the provisjori pf.npw pracliCes.'ir) Ernergency Depa.rt.m.entsj

•At the .tifhe that the Emergency Department resources were alld.ca.ted-, 'funding for'the
Medication Assisted Treatment services had not 'yet :been identified. Medication Assisted
Treafmeht cdntract"..delivefables- regarding physiciah practices were identified, for-the .duration of
.this contract but vyere subject to funds .being ayaiia.tile. in the.secpnd year: The fi rst amendment
provided additibhal funds- for the development, ri'ecessary to provide Medication Assisted
treatment In physician practices. Amendirig this contract allows for the development work'td
.cdnlinue a'hd .allows sewi.cesTd be implenierileci;S'o Ihdiyi.duals .with substance.^ use:diso;r"der,s; iri
many;regipns:-of the: state Wil! .have a.ecess tp the^ .I'fe-.sayirig practices,. By:extendjf:!g the
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His Exccllcncyi CovcmorChristopherT.^Suhunu
and ihc Honorable Council

Pogc.3 of 4.

contVacl through SFY20. hospitals currently in development will be able to funy ihtegrate both
the -Medldatiori'Assisted Treatment and the work in the Emergency Departrnents into theii
normal workflow, and additional hospitals will develop these services.

To .address ;the growihg opioid crisis, providers must rapidly .develop and expand the
current substandd use disorder treatment infrastructure in order to meet the public's need for|
services. The Foundation for Healthy Communities will recruit, engage and provide training and
other tfefchnicai, support, to ;subcontfacted physician practices participating in the program,, anc
monitor their program cofhpliance.

The Department is satisfied with the yend.or's performance to date, io fact, trie yerido
exceeded the requirements of the original contract by working with more corhmunity providers
the initial contract required the vendor to work with a minimum of ten (1Q) physician practices
to increase the capacity to provide Medication Assisted Treatrnenl. As of December .31, 2018)
Foundation for Healthy Corhmunities has sub-cdhtfacted With eleven (11) hospitals representirig
twenty-tWo (22) initialpractjces that are expand.irig their capacity. The contract als6.requir.ed the
vendor to subcontract with a hriiriimUrrS of seven (7) hospitals to increase their capacity to.iaddress
substance use disorders iniheir Emergency Departments and the vendor has subcontracted
with:sevfen (7) hdspitals.es' of December 3l .26l8. If approved, this amendmq.ntwill cpntinu.e tq
support some of those community providers and initiate .work with additional Erhefgency
Departments. ^

The original agreement, included .the option to, extend cpritracted. se.rylces fpr .three (3
years, conlirigerit upon satisfactory delivery of services, .available funding. agVeehieht of the

" parties, dnd ■approyal of 'thp .Governor and Executive. C.puncil. The p.reYto.us amend,menj
extended the agfeemeht for one (1) year, leaving two (2) additional .years of renewal rerhsiinipg
The. current am.e.ndmeni is requesting one (1) year of renewal. leaving (1) year remaining.

Approximately five hundred (5.00) individuals v/ill receive services, supported, by 'this
prograrn from July i. ̂ Ol 9 throughJune 30.2020. ■ However, the overalf in vestment in the prpiect
will develop systems ib :sustain capacity In the future and support the developm.e.nt of new
programs to build long term ciEipaCity.

Sho.uld_ the Qpvempr and Executive Council not authorize this request, the availability o
these Vital services wiil be limited'and residents in soroe-areas of' the State may not re.ce.iy.q

" appropriate tr.eatment.for their opjpid addiction. Lack p! services cpuld resuU in a peiphtenqq
risk .of death from 6yerdp.se, financial .and emotl.drial strpins on families, ahp related ecpriortiic
and resburCe ehallehges in .cbrTirhuniiies as affected individuals continue to struggle wilh thei"
'addictions^

The geographic area tp. be served is statewide.
Sbufce.bf, Funds: 100% O.ther funds from Governor's, Commission.
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His Excellency, GovernorChristppherT. Sununu
artd'iht,Honorable Cpunci),

Pflge4.6f.4

■  In the event that Qther Funds become no longer available, additional "Qeneral Funds will
not be requested tp support this program.

Respectfully submitted. .

Jeffrey A- Meyers-
Commissioner

TV De^rlmtni bf-.HeoUhbnd Humon'^'rvi^' MUswh U to join com'munijifr
m-p>6o»d»njj<)ppp>rum|i« cUiiens to ochieue'heplUx qna independence'.
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Jcffnjr A: Mrytn
CoffifltifilMrr

■  ICiiJt VFo>.
CHm'wr

state OF NEW hampshum:

DEP^TMENT OF HEALTH AW HUMAN SERVICES

DimWN.FOIt BEHA VlOfM HEALTH

BUREAU OF DRUG ANti ALCOHOL SERVICES

lbs pleasant sTREier. concord, nh o)^i
603-1714110 l-«6^^-33<l3eiL67i8.

Fai: 603-27I4I0S TDD Acttii: i^80(Li3S>]9M
«rww.dhh».oh.goV

February 9. 2018

Hro Ex^Jlohcy, Gqvornof'Chrlfttppher T. Sunynu
end thfl Honorebie Council

Statc'House
.Concord, New Hampshire 03'301

REQUESTEO ACTION

Authorize/the Depa'^e'nt of Health and Human -Service's,. Division for Behavioral Health,
Bureau, of. Drug arid Alcohol S.eryices; .to ahfierid a ablp aoiirce agreement with Fpuhdaiioh for Healthy-
Communhies (Vendor «154533;B001). .125 ̂ rporl Road. .Concord,. NH 03301, fo'r .the purpose of
ex^riding the State's capacity lb p'ro.vlde -office-based; Opiate Treatment,' Including the use. of
medication's .to New Ham^hire residents -expen'enclng opioid addition' by increasirig .the price
.limitation by-$.1,056,000 from $1;800.000 to" an amount not .to exceed $2,856,000. .and extending .the-
.completion;date.tr'orn June..30. 2018 to. June'30,.201.9, effective, upon Governor arid Poiyndi approval.
The [ag'febrn'ent wjas originaiiy approved by the CSbvernor'and-.Executive Council, "on jujy 13, 2016
.(ileni^Bl The.addiliorwr.fundiiig is. 8(j% Fe.de.ra.l f^.und.5.'2b%-General Funds.

Funds;, are available in >the following accounts for State Fiscal Vears 20-1'B end. .2019, with
.authoi^jty to adjust amounts between state fisc.al years through the Budget Office; 'without .further
.approval from, doyemor and .Executive Council, if needed.and justified.
b5^9549^9i510.2990 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS OEPT OFy
HHS: blV OF COMM BASED CARE $VC, BUREAU'OF DRUG .& ALCOHOL SVC$. CLINICAL
SERViCES. •

5FY
Class/

Account
Class Title
!

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)
New

Am'oun't

■2017 '102^500734. Contracts for-Socia) Services $1,500,000 $0 $1,500,000

.2018 102-500734 Contracts for'Social Services ,  $ 30.0,000 $0 :S; 300.000

SuthTotel = ■ $i;soo,ooo $0 $1,800,000

OS'9^92-920610-33840000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS.DEPT
OF. HHS: OIV FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SVCS, CLINICAL .
SERVICES

:SFY .9 lass/
Account

Class Title Current:
Amount'

Increase/
(Decrease)

New Amount

2018. ,1.02-50()734 Contracts for Social Senrices' $0 i$. 500.000 ^ .$ ^.ppo

20.19 .102-5^0734 C.o'nlracts for .Social. Senrices' $P, ■  ;$556.000 $556,000

-
. .Sub-Total 50 51,056,000 $1,058,000

Contract Total $1,800,000 $$.1iO.50.OQ.O. . $2,856;00.0 '
/



DocuSign Envelope ID: A693D6D1-95D4-4E2F-B6C8-C0DEF2317DD5

OocuSJgn Envelope ID: 4063BE80.9D37-4A1F-B0C4.3AC2BD7DB520

His Exceiiency; jGovemorChrisiophcr T. Sununu
and (he Hohorable.'Cpuncil

Page 2,of 3

• EXPLANATION

the original agreement was sole source due to. the' quickly escalating opidid Ic/isis an^ the
need :to' develop^reatmerit services within the medi«i communit.y. This vendor was. selected, bemuse
of iLs"«tablished pfpfe»ionai/c with aU hospitals iri'New Hampshire arid Its proven ability to

.feffertively. with New Hampshire hospitals end physician practices to "implement new programs.
Theagre.emeoi with for Hea'uhy Communities wasapproved ,lp achtpye twp'Objectives:

i);-Expand Wedlcati6r> Assisted Treatment In physician ;pradicei by increaslrig, the number of
■  hos'pilaj-netwprkedphysician practices that provide Medication AssistedTreatmerit and.

^2) increase ihe State's capacity to addreSs aubs'tance- use disorders in -hpspHai Erriergeripy-
" Departments (Eday by recruiting and contracilrig with hospitals t"6 develop this capacity "arid;
.to Iniilate.'the provision of new practices In Emergency Oepartments-.

.Ai the time'tharthe Emergency Depam^^l resources.were allocated", funding for the Medicated
Assisted Treatment services .had not yet l^Ben Identified. Medicatior) Assisted Treatment coritrac*
deliverables .fbg^rding physician practices, were identified for the •duration of this contract; but were
isubject to fuh'ds ̂ ing' ayailable in the se.cor}d. year. This; amerid.ment provides ̂additional funps .to
•ppmpletB the' .develdprtieht hecessary tp provide Medication, Assisted Treafmenfin physiclart practices.
Ameridin'g .this-contract ;b"I1p^ for the •deyciopment.-wprk to continue and 'aliov^ .services to-,be
•Irfiplemerited.so IndiydO'als with substance "use disorders'.In many regions: o.f;tho slate-vyllLhavo-ac^ss-
to-these iife-s'avirig practices. 'By extending the icoriira'ct through S.YFig, both the M.edi,ca.tion Assisted
'.Treatment, and the work in the Emergency. Departments will be able "to be fully integrated into, their
. normal workflow, thus Improving the'sustainability of these vital services.

; To address the growirtg opioid crisis,.- providers must rapidly develop and "expand; "fesdurces.iri.
•addition. ;tp the. cufrenl s.ubitance .use disorder treairn.eritjnfrastryct.ure in .order .to rneet the:pubtic's.
n'eed. for thiV important service; The Foundation for Healt.hy'.Co,mm.unitles will f.ecnj'.V' ®.993go "and
•p'fovidff i.nd- pthaf'.techijisai. euppprt to sybco.ntracled. phys.ician pracllce.s participating in.ttie
pfdgram.^and rriohitoT tfieU. program

j.he Department- Satisfied with the yendor'.s p.ertormance .to dat®-, in, .fact, thp; vendo.r
exceeded" the iy^iiirenibrits of the original '.cdolract by wbrking vyith more cohirhuriify ■pr.qVj.de.rs^TfiB-
-contract' rcquir^ed the veridPf to 'wortc with ,a rhinim'um .'of ten (16)'physipiarS p/adices.:i.ncreasii^ c.^p»a'ciiy-
"tb-provide Medicaliori Assisted Treatment. In the first yea'f of..this .contract. FOuhdation'fo.f He.althy.
Communities has subr^cbritracted withreight (8) hospitals representing frfleerf ;([15)' initial p.ra"aices""^t^^^^^^^
e're expanding their capadiy. The cbrilract also required the vendor tb sutjcbritractiwith a minimum of;.
,fpur'"(4) hospitals.'to. capacity to address substance use disbrders ^ their Erriergericy
i^paftments. and'the .yer?dp.r-has .subcontracted seyen (7) hospitals .-to date. If approved, this,

.ame.ridmeht wll.c.o.ntinue to s'uppb'rt those coinm
,  The .pfigihai sgrebm.eht iincly.des tl^ option .to .extend .'cpritracted 'services, .for three (3) years,,

contingent 'upon seiisfa'ctory detiyery of. sen/ices, pvaiiabie 'funding, agreemeni of the parties.; .apd..
approval of 'thfe (Sb.vembf ...arid Executive- .Gpuncil. We': are ekefc.isirig tbe ;optio*ri to extend ;the.agree'merit.forTone (l.);y.ear :witK:this am'.endment. lc.aviri'9,.lwo' (2) additi.pnal year.? of. ren.ewai remajning.;

.Shpyld the "Opyem.o'r arid Executive ppuricii not aut.Hb'ri'ze; this .r.equesl.- .the infrastrudure
'develbbmeni:initiated .iri -Slato Fiscal.Ve'ar 26.l7;w.rii not' be .cbmpleied arid "re.si^nts" may,.nqt.fpceiy.e
8ppropriat"e "treaiment.foMheir-.b.pibid addiction .re'sultio'g iri d heightened risk ;bf d.calh frp.mjdyerdose.r
•financial, and emolibrial; sirairis .on families, arid "related .ecbribmic arid re.sburce ch.alleriges. iri.
communities as affected .Individuals cbh'liriue to struggle with .ihelf •addictions.

The9eo9raphVc':a.rea;io;be;servedis slatpwide. .
■■"Swrce.of Funds: 80% Federal Funds from the United States .Department of "Health.and.Hurnao

Services,- Siibstarice Abuse-and Mental Health Services Administration". Substance-Abuse". Rfeveritibri
and' Trpaimem CFDA yi^3..959'.- 'Federal Award Idenl^ica'ttpn Number (FAIN) 1)010035;
and .2b.%;Genefai 'Fu.nd.s;-
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In the event that Federal Funds become r^o longer available, Genera) Funds will not be
requested'to.supporl thiis program. '

Respectfully submitted.

Kat/a S. Fox
Director

Approved by;

Jeffrey A.- Meyers
Commissioner

pnd M'tuipn ii.io join coTi/nwniitcj ohd familio'
inpiwiiinf Op^lunilin for cifufA* (o'.'ocAtfc* AnliA and indf^'ndcACt.
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J.cfryey A. Meyers
Coinr^.ssloner

Kstja S. Tox
Director'of the Division'of

Behavioral Health

STATE or NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMEHT of HE/aiH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

Bureau of Drug end Alcohol Services

106 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH 03801
603-27l-€7de l-80b>604^869

Fez: 6Ci9-29l^l06 TDD Acceit; l-SpO-7d6-2e6<
www.dhhs.nh.ffov •

June 28, 201,6

Her Excellency, Governor.Mygart^ Wood Husan-
.'fuid iheHdnorable Council

Siaic House • . "
Concord; New Hampshire 03301"

REQUESTED ACTION

Aulhoriie-ihc Depanmcni ofHcalih wd Human (o enter .into e.iSOLE SOURCE Agreement
wiih'Foundaiion for Healthy Communities (Vendor #I5.4533-B00I), 125 Airport Road, Cpncprd,- NH
P'33.01, for. the purpose, of expanding the State's- capacity io pirovldc .pITice-based Op.iaic Ti^tmenl,
irKludiiig. the. UK of medications io New Harnpshire residents .experiencing .opioid .addiction in an
.amount not exceed ,S1;8()0.{)p0, vpVh a complejioh date .of J.uric 30, 2018, eTfccuve July J ,. 2016 or the
date'pf GpyernoXahd Council .'approval, .whiche ver is'lai^. 7SVo Federa.l .FuDdi, 25% Gepenil Funds.

T.unds;a/]C available in the following account for^SFY 20j7'and SPY 1.8 with.autkonty to^just
amounts between state 'fiscal yearj through the .B.udg'ct Office, without fuhher approval from Governor
.and-^ecutixe/Coim'cilVj.f'i*Wcd and.ju

p5-9;$^9-49i5l{klW0 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS.
DEPT OF, HHSVDIV OF COMM BASED GaRE SVC, BUREAU Of DRUG St ALCOHOL
SVCS, CLINICAL SERVICES ,

-FUeal Year GiDssVAceouot Ciaii Title- Amouot

.2017 102.500734 Coniracts for Social Services .  SI,-500,000 ..

20)8 102-500734 Contracts for Social Services J -300,00.0

Total SLSOO.OOO.

■  EmANATION

this .request-is :S.ubrnjn^^^ as .a SOLE ..SOURCE request due to the urgent nature of the opioid
cnii.s i.n'Ne'vy Hampshire ah.d the. .impact arid benefit of engaging physician .practices tri •effectively
.Bdd/'esiingiSubstancc.UK.'Disorders'(SUDs). The ■Mcdjcatlpn',Assi5lcd Trc'ajmem (MATj-ahd Hospild
Emergency Oepariment (ED) programs supponed by thi.s Agreemcht'arc' two.df several addiction
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identification, overdose prcvc.nlipn' and i/eaiment aciiviiies proposed to expend Nevv
HajTipshire's infriis^lvre capacity to Ueat.afTected residents. The Foundation for.Healthy Communities
will .also fa'ciliiaie expansion of community-based MAT programs statewide by recrviting and
.contracting with physician practices interested in developing or enhancing "their cap:aci.ty to deliver MAT
services .in their cpirimunilies. The' vendor .will also address SUDs in Hospital EDs by reci^iitlng and
engaging hospitals in geiographic region's Sviih high rates oropioid overdoses-iolncrease ih'eir capacity to
add.ness spbstance use disorders. This .vendor was selected because of its established professional-
relationships-with ell Hospitals in New'Hampshirc. and its proven ability.to work e'ffcctivdy .with New
Hampshire hospiialsrand physician practices to implement new programs.:

Tite heed for bb.th expanded MAT and increased capacity to address SUDs in the EDs is evident
by the.high rates of opioid use .rcneci'cd in "the sharp increase in emergency rooip Visits, .iuTibulan.ce cjolls
related ioopioids,.and by the-437 overdose deaths in 201.5 (up from 325 in 2014).

In an ciTon tOisupport MAT expansion, the Department convened a panel of prBctiiionci:$ from
health care, .behavioral health, ̂substance use disorder (SUD) specialty treatrrient set^'ices, and the New..
-Hampshire MediiarSocieiy to review existing practices in New Ham;p$hirc".and other :.sia.ie"s. The. panel
.identified key components and 'b«i practices from the American Sodety of Addiciiori Mddicinc.
(ASAM) a/id" other nelionajlytrwo'gniicd resources. ThrougH this Nwrk e c6mpcndiurn.6r.bcst prociice
leconunendations ̂ d rnources for implementing an'd delivcririg efTeciivc MAT was de.yeloped to
.support a vwi.c.ty''pf service scKihgs to pr.omoic and assist withpropd integration of MAT services.

Thke.c.orc bbjcciiycs were.'ideritiried lb expand MAT services in-New Hampshirc.-'Thcy iricludc:.
I. .Increas.c the number of-waivcrcd bupreftorphincprcscribcrs;
-2. .Increase.Dwa/eness of and access to extended-release irijectable (depot) naltrexone and other

rh'edications by .prescription; ant)
3. Jncrease.-officc-based access io MAT programs through multiple settings, inctudirig.primary

core ofTrces and .clinics, specialty office-bascd.(stand-alone). MAT program's, and iradiiional
- addiilbn-ireaiment programs offering medication assistance.-.

To addrcss'ihe growing crisis, it is critical that providers rapidly dcve1pp;and.cxpahd:rcspurce$ in
oddition-io the currem SUO-^fwi.mcni infrastrvcturc in-order to rriect the.pubjic.'s.hced for this iniportflht
service. It is-the. expectation-of; the Departrhcni that -by-issuing infr^fructurc expansion grants, lb
racllllaimg.orgajiizaiions, like'Foun.datiqn fqr'Hcfllihy Cpmmunitije's."the bepartmc.nrs,co'rc objectives
•will bc-achieved and result iri a dccreascd num'bcr of ovcrddse.dcaih's.-and reduced economic costs to the
Si8tc,..Thfbugh these corfim.uri[ly-ba$jed MAT infrasifuciurc expansion programs,'the .'foimdaiion for-
Healthy "Cd'HTmunilies. -will, recruit", .eng'agc .and provide training and other technical support to.
.subcontracted phySicifin practice's p'artici^aiirig in the program, and monitor iheir.program cpmpliwcc:

The f^rfbimahCcibf-ihe' MAT pr'6grarf>."wiM,bc:m'cisured by:
1. The cpmracior|ssubrTn}S.s.ion of,a work plan within 45 days-ofcoriiract opprbiral;
2. the cohlracioV's-submissibn of a propped list ofphysicjan. pracilccs.to'lhe'.I^partjri.cnt for

sulwntraciing approval;
3. The: cqniracipfls .subrnission .of quarterly status reports based oh wortc jplan .p'rbgress,

including but-irp't lirrtitpdjlp:"
• Number and crederii'i'els of staff retuned io;suppbn-MAT'
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• Numii<f-ofphys.tciah$-waivercd to prescribe buprcnorphinc
•. Policies and prjicticejesiabJished.
• " Changes madc'ioilhc initial work plan . '
• Trdining and technical ;wsi'$i.ance provided
• OtKer:progress ip dale

4; ,,ThcMntr8_cior'$ s>k)m^^^ a'rine) repon, documenting thesrollowing:
• " Minimum .of 1 O prac'ticcs have increased capacity to provide MAT seivices
• Minimum of.2P physicjans, became waivcred to prescribe buprenorphine
• Mipittium of :10. other.'provldefs are available to .suppkirt'MAT-(e^g:, ciiriiclans, hur«

praciltioners) •*
'* Minimum of ,10'practices have policies and 'procedures for providing'MAT according to

.  , the'Ouidclines.
• ' Minimum of-5 practic.es'display accurate documentation of MAT in. client 'records

accordin'g to the Guidelines. .
.• Njimbcr of -.irainrngv and technical assistance provided related to' bcsi, practice

rmpicm'ehlatioh.df-MAT'for Opiate Use.Diwrdcrs.-
Pcpp']c'expCT.i'chcing.,SUD:cmergcricies maybe morc-opcn to.iriitiating treatment. Hpspi.tAI^EPs

hced'lo be j^cjwed to address not only the medical sequel.ac. of overdoses; bul;al50 .io proyidc.or refer
for ifwimcni of ihc'SUD. To tiiat end,- the Foundation for Healthy Cornniunitics' will also cbntract.-.with

■ idcnij.ficd. hospitals to .increase, the'ability-of current staff to cffcciivcly connect patients .wnih'SU.O
'cfTtcr'g'chcics to. .appropriate resources to Comprehensively address their SUpv ahd lb dcyeiop iahd
implement lortgrtcrm plans fprefTectlve ca/e.of patients .with S'UPS.yvho.corne-irito the,ED.

. The ;rpcrTonn,wce of the'-ED program will be measured by in,crimes to the .baseline numbers
•djnerrnincdat.ihe.bc'gifmLfig'of.,^ as follows:-.

*. Minimum"qffour.(4)hospiia)s incr.cwing ihcircapaciiy'to addrcis'SUDs in theiriEDs.
'• iMinirhum 'of four (.4).h6spil8ls'implcmcntjng improved proiocqis'in'lhcir EDs;
'• increased ni^bcr (from baKljnc) "of ED -patients with SLIDs' accessing 'cbmprchcfisiyc

■jfcrvices to address their, S.Lfds;po$i.-discharge froni
If (lie 'Contract 'is. n.bt 'granted, ;rc$idcnls, «ckifig' recovery may not' receive appropriate • ircatmcni'

:fbr;their ppibld.'add.iciibn, rc'sulting in a'hci'gHicncd.risk pf death frorn pccldcntal overdose;.'financial arid
emotional strains,on families, and related econpmic-an'd resource challcnges"in.'c.o''rnmuriiucs;aj5 affected
individuals continue to staigglc-with their'addiciiohS'.

As referenced-in''E>A>bii:C-iV.Rcvisl^^ to C.c'neral jVovlsioris, ihe. 'Agrecmchthas 'thc opiion.ib
cxiend.fpr-tiuee (3) a'ddiiip.na] years,.'cbniingeht upon satisfactory delivery ofscrviccs, available fading;
ogreemeht ,of ihc-pa'rtics, ahd.apprbval of the. Governor and Executive-GouncjI.

'thCi'gebg'raph'ici&rea.tb.bC'.seryed is statewide.
Source of Fiinds: 75V».Fedcrjd .Funds from the United States Dcpartmcril.,or Health and Human

Services. Subsiancc A;6usc'..and 'Menial .Health- Scryi.ces; Adniiriisirailon, Substance .Abuse Rrcveniipn
and Treatment 'Block;'Craht. GFDA .<l93.?59MFcdcral Award. Identificaiibn Number .TiOl Cf()3S0S| :and
25% General Funds.



DocuSign Envelope ID: A693D6D1-95D4-4E2F-B6C8-C0DEF2317DD5

OocuSign Envelope ID: 4O63BE8O-gD37-4A1F.B0C4-3AC2BD7O8520

Her Excellency, OovcmorMArgarei Wood-Hftssen
and ihe Honorable Council

Page 4 of 4

In the event'that Federal Funds t>ecome no longer available, C.encral Furids will not be requested
to suppofi this prbgrarri.

Respectfti.liy submitted,

4-^
KeijaS.Fox

Director of the Oivlslon of.

Behavioral Health

Approved by.:
Icycrf€y

Smmissioner

l9KhU*t iitellh


